AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM
CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14™ STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC,
ON MONDAY, MARCH 2, 2026 AT 6:00 PM

Watch Livestream at cnv.org/LiveStreaming
View complete Agenda Package at cnv.org/CouncilMeetings

The City of North Vancouver respectfully acknowledges that this Council meeting is held on the traditional
and unceded territories of the Skwxwu7mesh (Squamish) and salilwetat (Tsleil-Waututh) Nations.

CALL TO ORDER

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, March 2, 2026

ADOPTION OF MINUTES

2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, February 23, 2026

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD

CONSENT AGENDA

Item *3 is listed in the Consent Agenda for consideration.

BYLAWS — ADOPTION

*3. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2026, No. 9152”
(Nuytco Research Ltd., 214 East Esplanade, M-4)

4, “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2025,
No. 9141” (City Initiated Amendment to Update Regional Context Statement)

DELEGATION

Annwen Loverin, Executive Director, and Richard Gauntlett, President of the
Board of Directors, Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre — Silver Harbour
Seniors’ Activity Centre

CORRESPONDENCE

5. Annwen Loverin, Executive Director, Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre
— Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre

Document Number: 2779634
Page 1



https://www.cnv.org/City-Hall/Council-Meetings/Council-Meeting-Live-Streaming
https://www.cnv.org/City-Hall/Council-Meetings/Council-Agendas,-Minutes-,-a-,amp;-Videos

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
Regular Council Meeting Agenda — March 2, 2026 Page 2

PRESENTATION

Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity
Centre Update — Deputy Chief Administrative Officer

Information Report, February 11, 2026 — “New Harry Jerome Community
Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre — Project Update”

PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD

COUNCIL INQUIRIES

NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS

NOTICES OF MOTION

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION)

ADJOURN

Page 2




THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
Regular Council Meeting Agenda — March 2, 2026 Page 3

CALL TO ORDER

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, March 2, 2026

ADOPTION OF MINUTES

2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, February 23, 2026

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD

The Public Input Period is addressed in sections 12.20 to 12.28 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015,
No. 8500.” The time allotted for each speaker addressing Council during the Public Input Period is 2
minutes, with the number of speakers set at 5 persons. Speakers’ comments will be audio recorded,
as well as live-streamed on the City’s website, and will form part of the public record.

Speakers may only speak on the same matter once in a 3-month period.

Speakers during the Public Input Period are permitted to join the meeting in person in the Council
Chamber or electronically via Webex. There are 2 ways to sign up to speak during the Public Input
Period.

1) IN PERSON: Speakers who choose to participate in person must sign the speaker list located
outside the Council Chamber between 5:30 and 5:50 pm on the day of the Council meeting.

2) ELECTRONICALLY VIA WEBEX: Speakers who choose to participate electronically must
pre-register by 12:00 pm on the day of the Council meeting by completing the online form at
cnv.org/PublicinputPeriod, or by phoning 604-990-4234. These pre-registrants will receive
instructions by email or phone on the afternoon before the Council meeting.

If a speaker has written material to accompany their comments, the material must be sent to the
Corporate Officer at clerks@cnv.org no later than 12:00 pm on the day of the Council Meeting.

The Public Input Period provides an opportunity for comment only and places the speaker’s concern
on record, without the expectation of a response from Council. Speakers must comply with the
General Rules of Conduct set out in section 5.1 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500” and
may not speak with respect to items as listed in section 12.25(2), including Zoning Bylaws for which a
Public Hearing will not be held or is prohibited under section 464 of the Local Government Act.

Speakers are requested not to address matters that refer to items from a concluded Public
Hearing/Public Meeting or to Public Hearings, Public Meetings and Committee meetings when those
matters are scheduled on the same evening’s agenda, as an opportunity for public input is provided
when the particular item comes forward for discussion.

Please address the Mayor as “Your Worship” or “Mayor, followed by their surname”. Councillors
should be addressed as “Councillor, followed by their surname”.

Page 3




THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
Regular Council Meeting Agenda — March 2, 2026 Page 4

CONSENT AGENDA

Item *3 is listed in the Consent Agenda for consideration.
RECOMMENDATION:
THAT the recommendation listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved.

START OF CONSENT AGENDA

BYLAW — ADOPTION

*3. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2026, No. 9152”
(Nuytco Research Ltd., 214 East Esplanade, M-4)

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2026, No. 9152”
(Nuytco Research Ltd., 214 East Esplanade, M-4) be adopted, signed by the
Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal.

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

BYLAW — ADOPTION

4. “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2025,
No. 91417 (City Initiated Amendment to Update Regional Context Statement)

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw,
2025, No. 91417 (City Initiated Amendment to Update Regional Context
Statement) be adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed
with the corporate seal.

DELEGATION

Annwen Loverin, Executive Director, and Richard Gauntlett, President of the
Board of Directors, Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre

Re:  Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre

Item 5 refers.

Page 4




THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
Regular Council Meeting Agenda — March 2, 2026 Page 5

CORRESPONDENCE

5. Annwen Loverin, Executive Director, Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre,
January 5, 2026 - File: 01-0230-20-0054/2026

Re:  Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the correspondence from Annwen Loverin, Executive Director, Silver
Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre, dated January 5, 2026, regarding the “Silver
Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre”, be received for information with thanks.

PRESENTATION

Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity
Centre Update — Deputy Chief Administrative Officer

Information Report, February 11, 2026 — “New Harry Jerome Community
Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre — Project Update”

PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD

The Public Clarification Period is limited to 10 minutes in total and is an opportunity for
the public to ask a question regarding process or clarification on an item on the Regular
Council Agenda. The Public Clarification Period concludes after 10 minutes and the
Regular Council Meeting reconvenes.

COUNCIL INQUIRIES

NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS

NOTICES OF MOTION

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, pursuant
to the Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(k) [contract negotiations/proposed
service] and 90(2)(b) [intergovernmental relations].

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION)

ADJOURN

Page 5




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 6



ORTH ¥y
ok G
=

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN THE
COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM CITY
HALL, 141 WEST 14™ STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2026

PRESENT: Mayor L. Buchanan
Councillor H. Back
Councillor D. Bell
Councillor A. Girard
Councillor J. Mcllroy
Councillor S. Shabhriari
Councillor T. Valente

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm.

Mayor Buchanan provided comments regarding the recent tragedy in the community of
Tumbler Ridge, BC.

Mayor Buchanan acknowledged Pink Shirt Day on February 25, 2026, and recognized the
achievements made at the Winter Olympics and Paralympics.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Shahriari

1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, February 23, 2026

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
R2026-02-23/1

ADOPTION OF MINUTES

Moved by Councillor Shahriari, seconded by Councillor Back

2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, February 9, 2026

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
R2026-02-23/2

PROCLAMATIONS

Mayor Buchanan declared the following proclamations:

Rare Disease Day — February 28, 2026 — read by Councillor Bell

International Women’s Day — March 8, 2026 — read by Councillor Mcliroy

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD

None

Document Number: 2777840
Page 7



CONSENT AGENDA

Moved by Councillor Shahriari, seconded by Councillor Valente
THAT the recommendations listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

START OF CONSENT AGENDA

BYLAWS — ADOPTION

3. “Local Election Bylaw, 2026, No. 9108
Moved by Councillor Shahriari, seconded by Councillor Valente

THAT “Local Election Bylaw, 2026, No. 9108” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and
Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal.

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY BY CONSENT)
R2026-02-23/3

4, “‘Automated Vote Counting System Authorization and Procedure Bylaw, 2026, No. 9146”
Moved by Councillor Shahriari, seconded by Councillor Valente

THAT “Automated Vote Counting System Authorization and Procedure Bylaw, 2026,
No. 9146” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the
corporate seal.

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY BY CONSENT)
R2026-02-23/4

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

BYLAW — ADOPTION

5. “Election Sign Bylaw, 2026, No. 9117”
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard
THAT “Election Sign Bylaw, 2026, No. 9117” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and

Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

R2026-02-23/5
PRESENTATIONS
A. 2026 Heritage Awards
Mayor Buchanan presented the “2026 Heritage Awareness Award” to:
e Anna Lynch, North Van Arts; and
e Chris Carnovale, School of Tourism Management at Capilano University.
The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 23, 2026

Page 8



PRESENTATIONS - Continued

B. The Year In Review — 2025 Accomplishments — Chief Financial Officer and Manager,
Corporate Planning

Finance staff provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding “The Year In Review — 2025
Accomplishments” and responded to questions from Council.

Councillor Girard left the meeting at 7:09 pm and returned at 7:11 pm.
C. Annual Chief Financial Officer's Department Update — Chief Financial Officer

Finance staff provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding the “Annual Chief Financial
Officer's Department Update” and responded to questions from Council.

REPORT

6. Rezoning Application — 214 East Esplanade (Nuytco Research Ltd.)
— File: 08-3400-20-0178/1

Report:  Planner 1, February 4, 2026
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 1, dated February 4, 2026, entitled “Rezoning
Application — 214 East Esplanade (Nuytco Research Ltd.)”:

THAT the application submitted by Nuytco Research Ltd., to rezone the property
located at 214 East Esplanade from a Comprehensive Development 22 (CD-022)
Zone to Industrial-Commercial (M-4) Zone, be considered;

AND THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2026, No. 9152”
(Nuytco Research Ltd, 214 East Esplanade, M-4) be considered for readings with no
Public Hearing held, in accordance with the Local Government Act, Section 464(2)
[public hearing not required)].

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
R2026-02-23/6

BYLAW — FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS

7. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2026, No. 9152” (Nuytco
Research Ltd., 214 East Esplanade, M-4)

Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2026, No. 9152” (Nuytco
Research Ltd., 214 East Esplanade, M-4) be given first, second and third readings.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
R2026-02-23/7

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 23, 2026

Page 9



PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD

Nil.

COUNCIL INQUIRIES

Nil.

NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS

Nil.

NOTICES OF MOTION

Nil.

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION

Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Back

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, pursuant to the
Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(c) [labour relations], 90(1)(e) land matter, 90(1)(f)
law enforcement matter, 90(1)(I) [annual report], and 90(2)(b) [intergovernmental
relations].

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

The meeting recessed to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, at 7:34 pm and
reconvened at 10:12 pm with all members of Council present.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION)

Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Valente

THAT the actions directed regarding the following items from the Committee of the
Whole (Closed Session) of February 23, 2026, be ratified:

8. Land Matter / Law Enforcement Matter — File: 01-0110-10-0001/2026

Report: General Manager, Public Safety and Fire Chief
Chief Administrative Officer, February 19, 2026

PURSUANT to the report of the General Manager, Public Safety and Fire Chief, and
the Chief Administrative Officer, dated February 19, 2026, regarding land and law
enforcement matters:

THAT the wording of the resolution and the report of the General Manager, Public
Safety and Fire Chief, and the Chief Administrative Officer, dated February 19, 2026,

remain in the Closed session.
R2026-02-23/8

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 23, 2026
Page 10



ADJOURN

Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Mcllroy

THAT the meeting adjourn.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

The meeting adjourned at 10:13 pm.

“Certified Correct by the Corporate Officer”

CORPORATE OFFICER

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of February 23, 2026

Page 11



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 12



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
BYLAW NO. 9152
A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700”

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled,
enacts as follows:

1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700,
Amendment Bylaw, 2026, No. 9152” (Nuytco Research Ltd., 214 East Esplanade,
M-4).

2. Division VII: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby
amended by reclassifying the following lands currently having a civic address of 214 East
Esplanade and legally described below as henceforth being transferred, added to and
forming part of M-4 (Industrial-Commercial):

LOT 59 BLOCK 167 DISTRICT LOT 274 GROUP 1 NEW

PID: 008-473-307 | \yESTMINSTER DISTRICT PLAN 878

from Comprehensive Development 22 (CD-022) Zone.

READ a first time on the 23 day of February,
2026.

READ a second time on the 23 day of
February, 2026.

READ a third time on the 23" day of February,
2026.

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2026.

MAYOR

CORPORATE OFFICER

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1
Bylaw, 2026, No. 9152 Document: 2755925-v1

Page 13



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 14



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
BYLAW NO. 9141
A Bylaw to amend “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400”

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled,
enacts as follows:

1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Official Community Plan Bylaw,
2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2025, No. 9141” (City Initiated Amendment to
Update Regional Context Statement).

2.  “Part 1 — Foundation” of “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400” is hereby
amended by:

A. Replacing Subsections “Regional Priorities” and “Working With Neighbours and
Community Partners” under Section “Plan Context” in its entirety and replacing it with
“‘Regional Priorities” and “Working With Neighbours and Community Partners”
attached to this Bylaw as Schedule A.

3.  “Chapter 1 Land Use: Housing, Population & Employment” of “Part 2 Community Directions”
of “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400” is hereby amended by:

A. Replacing Figure 7 “Frequent Transit Development Areas” under Section 2.4 “Area-
Specific Planning Policies” with Figure 7 “Frequent Transit Development Areas”
attached to this Bylaw as Schedule B.

4. “Schedule E Regional Context Statement” of “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No.
8400” is hereby amended by replacing Schedule E with “Schedule E Regional Context
Statement” attached to this Bylaw as Schedule C.

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1
Bylaw, 2025, No. 9141 Document: 2714568-v1

Page 15



5.  Appendix 4.0 “Regional Context Statement” of “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No.
8400” is hereby amended by replacing Appendix 4.0 “Regional Context Statement” in its
entirety with Appendix 4.0 “Regional Context Statement” attached to this Bylaw as Schedule

D.

READ a first time on the 20" day of October,
2025.
READ a second time on the 17" day of
November, 2025.
READ a third time on the 17" day of November,
2025.
ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 20<>.
MAYOR
CORPORATE OFFICER

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2

Bylaw, 2025, No. 9141 Document: 2714568-v1

Page 16



SCHEDULE A
Regional Priorities

The Metro Vancouver region’s Regional Growth Strategy (RGS), Metro 2050, was adopted on February 24, 2023. Metro 2050 is the regional
federation’s collective vision for how growth will be managed to support the creation of complete, connected, and resilient communities, while
protecting important lands and supporting the efficient provision of urban infrastructure like transit and utilities.

Metro 2050 is the region’s shared vision of how projected population, housing, and job growth will be managed over the next 30 years. The strategy
considers significant drivers of change in the region and integrates closely with Transport 2050, the Regional Transportation Strategy.

There are five fundamental strategies within Metro 2050 designed to achieve a more livable and balanced region:
Goal 1: Create a Compact Urban Area
Goal 2: Support a Sustainable Economy
Goal 3: Protecting the Environment, Address Climate Change, and Respond to Natural Hazards
Goal 4: Provide Diverse and Affordable Housing Choices
Goal 5: Support Sustainable Transportation Choices

Like the predecessor Regional Growth Strategy, Metro 2040, Metro 2050 establishes a hierarchy of urban centres (see Figure 2), urban land use
designations and non-urban land use designations. Within this hierarchy the Lonsdale core is the only urban centre on the North Shore that is
designated as a Regional City Centre. Urban centres are intended to be priority locations for employment, services, higher density housing,
commercial, cultural, entertainment and institutional uses. It is in this context that the Lonsdale Regional City Centre acts as the “downtown” for the
entire North Shore.

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3
Bylaw, 2025, No. 9141 Document: 2714568-v1

Page 17



MAP 2 Regional Land Use Designations

SQUAMISH-LILLOCET

- FRASER VALLEY
REGIOMNAL DISTRICT
SUMSHINE COAST I REGICH DISTRICT

REGIONAL DISTRICT

REGIOMAL LAND USE DESIGNATION

General Urban
B Industrial
B Employment
B Agricultural
Rural

B Conservation and Recreation . N - o =L ___T' - 3' v jfn,{""- -"I »
&Y Urban Containment Bounda ' = ‘}
n Containment Boungary ’ -ﬁ '- \%\_

[] Areas where Regional Land Use
Designations do not apply

-—— Municipal Boundary
— -~ Regional District Boundary
—— Major Highways

This map is a small scale representation of the parcel-based Regional Land Use Designation Map that Metro Vancouver maintains as the basis for defining land-use designation
boundaries. The official Regional Land Use Designation Map can be found at metrovancouverorg Revised by Bylaw 1392, 2024

Figure 2 The Regional Context (Metro Vancouver 2050, Metro Vancouver 2024)

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4
Bylaw, 2025, No. 9141 Document: 2714568-v1

Page 18



The Local Government Act requires that each municipality prepare a Regional Context Statement (RCS) as part of its OCP. This document identifies
the relationship between the local plan and the Regional Growth Strategy (RGS), and is updated over time as new RGSs are adopted. The City’s OCP
contains goals and objectives that support the fundamental strategies of the RGS, and specifically includes policies to meet the population, housing
and employment projections set out in the RGS. An RCS map (Schedule E in Appendix 1.0), a summary chart (Table 2 on the following page) and
complete document (Appendix 4.0) have been prepared to indicate how the City’s Plan supports the Regional Growth Strategy.

The RGS projections for the City are as follows:

Table 1 The Regional Context (Metro Vancouver 2050, Growth Projections 2024 Update)

Census (Statistics Canada) Metro Vancouver Medium Growth Scenario Projection

2011 2021 2030 2040 2050
Population 48,196 58,120 76,260 89,210 99,080
Dwelling Units 24,206 29,021 35,760 41,880 46,530
Employment 30,422 32,620 39,270 44,730 48,770

Per the 2024 Interim Housing Needs Report, the City’s 20-year housing need is 21,301 housing units. This is in addition to the existing 29,021
residential units within the City as recorded by the 2021 Census. A total of 50,322 units of capacity are needed to meet the City’s 20 year housing
need. In early 2025, the City determined that the OCP land use designations provide for a gross residential capacity of more than 71,000 units.
Growth is directed to the Regional City Centre and Frequent Transit Development Areas so that employment and housing options and are located
within short distances to employment areas, services, and schools. In particular, a broader range of housing types, supported by local commercial
uses is anticipated along the City’s current and planned transit routes. Figure 6 illustrates this basic City Structure.

Working With Neighbours and Community Partners

Success in the development and implementation of the OCP will be achieved through ongoing collaboration with our neighbouring jurisdictions,
including the Squamish Nation, the District of North Vancouver and the District of West Vancouver. As well, ongoing collaboration will be needed
with Vancouver Coastal Health, the North Vancouver School District and various community agencies that provide services to the community and
support the development of the next generation.

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Bylaw, 2025, No. 9141

Page 5
Document: 2714568-v1

Page 19



Table 2 Regional Context Statement Summary Chart

OCP Chapter & Goal
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
. . - 2z | S >w £ B, | R = | @
Regional Context Statement: Required Policies and Content @58 | B>y 3] £ |5 gﬁ = 5% Lo £ é g 53 3
£5 vEd ] S EX I %":Q_ £ £5a 583
325|838 | EZ |38EE| 587 | 3% |25 |5t¢
RCS T8E | 52 S= 20 g8 | g7T 2483 | =28
Policy sEET * = < S =
Goal 1: Create a Compact Urban Area
Contain urban development within the Urban Containment Boundary 1.1
Focus growth in Urban Centres and Frequent Transit Development Areas 1.2
Develop resilient, healthy, connected, and complete communities with a range of 13
services and amenities )
Protect Rural lands from urban development 1.4
Goal 2: Support a Sustainable Economy
Promote land development patterns that support a diverse regional economy and 21
employment opportunities close to where people live )
Protect the supply and enhance the efficient use of Industrial land 2.2
Protect the supply of agricultural land and strengthen Agricultural viability 2.3
Goal 3: Protect the Environment, Address Climate Change, and Respond to Natural Hazards

Protect and enhance Conservation and Recreation lands
Protect, enhance, restore, and connect ecosystems

Advance land use, infrastructure, and human settlement patterns that reduce
energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions, create carbon storage
opportunities, and improve air quality

Advance land use, infrastructure, and human settlement patterns that improve
resilience to climate change impacts and natural hazards

Goal 4: Provide Diverse and Affordable Housing Choices

3.1

Expand the supply and diversity of housing to meet a variety of needs

Protect tenants and expand, retain, and renew rental housing supply

Meet the housing needs of lower income households and populations experiencing
or at risk of homelessness

Goal 5: Support Sustainable Transportation Choices

Coordinate land use and transportation to encourage transit, multiple-occupancy
vehicles, cycling and walking

Coordinate land use and transportation to support the safe and efficient movement
of vehicles for passengers, goods, and services

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Bylaw, 2025, No. 9141

Page 20

Document: 2714568-v1



SCHEDULE B

HDGEWRY
noooY
il EOULIVARD

KIDGENAY

woooY
o

SUTHERLAND

4 storeys |

i 4 storeys b

~ - - High-capacity marine service *JS‘

= Future Rapid Transit Corridor ﬁf N _ R

==== Frequent Transit Development Area §¢9 @&u ™G o~ |

@B Lonsdale Regional City Centre ° e e {
The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7
Bylaw, 2025, No. 9141 Document: 2714568-v1

Page 21



Legend

Truck Routes

~ - Gty Boundary

Roads
. Highway
e Arterial (Major and Minor)

- Collector and Local

North Shore Area Transit Plan
@ Future Frequent Transit Service

@ Future Rapid Transit Service
) Frequent Transit Development Area
3 urban containment Boundary
@ Reoonl Gty Centre

Regional Context Land Use
Designations
General Urban

I;mmmt

- Industial
| Squamish First Nation

| Consenvation & Recreation

SCHEDULE C

P

: Gty

{ vancouver

‘ Schedule E
Regional Context
N Statement

= Part of the Official Community Plan

LN

|
|
| —. ?
| W4
o NOTES
Adopted March 23, 2015
Amended April 3, 2017

4

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver

Bylaw, 2025, No. 9141

Page 22

Page 8
Document: 2714568-v1



SCHEDULE D

Metro 2050
Implementation Guideline
Regional Context Statement

July 2025

Page 23



METRO 2050 REGIONAL CONTEXT STATEMENT

Metro 2050 Targets

In the following section please outline the Official Community Plan policies (or equivalent) that
demonstrate your Member Jurisdiction’s contribution to reaching the regional federation’s Regional
Growth Strategy targets. Please also provide supplementary information on how these policies, along
with any other applicable plans or strategies, will work together to contribute to meeting these regional
targets. For the environmental and housing targets, Metro 2050 recognizes that the targets are regional in
scale and long term to the year 2050; Member Jurisdiction local context is expected.

Metro 2050 Regional Targets

Goal 1 Create a Compact Urban Area Targets

Policy with Target

Applicable OCP Policies

Supplementary Information

1.1.9 b) Provide Member Jurisdiction
population, dwelling unit, and
employment projections, with reference
to guidelines contained in Table 1, and
demonstrate how local plans will work
towards accommodating the projected
growth within the Urban Containment
Boundary in accordance with the
regional target of focusing 98% of
residential growth inside the Urban
Containment Boundary

The entirety of the City of North
Vancouver is within the Urban
Containment Boundary.

Please see Table A for population,
dwelling unit, and employment
projections.

Objectives 1.2.1, 4.2.2,7.2.2,8.1.1
speak to how projected growth will
be directed within the Urban
Containment Boundary.

Current population, dwelling
unit, and employment
projections indicate that the
City of North Vancouver is
making healthy progress in
sustaining the medium growth
scenario provided by Metro
Vancouver (2024 Update).

Table A: Population, Dwelling Unit, Employment Projections

2021 2030 2040 2050
Population 61,550 76,260 89,210 99,080
Dwelling Units 28,770 35,760 41,880 46,530
Employment 32,620 39,720 44,730 48,770

Source: Metro Vancouver Growth Projection Tables — June 2024 Update, Medium Growth Scenario.

Metro 2050 Policy with Target

Applicable OCP Policies

Supplementary
Information

1.2.23 a) provide dwelling unit and
employment projections that indicate
the Member Jurisdiction’s share of
planned growth and contribute to
achieving the regional share of growth
for Urban Centres and Frequent Transit
Development Areas as set out in Table 2
(Dwelling Unit and Employment Growth
Targets for Urban Centres and Frequent
Transit Development Areas)

Regional Targets for Residential Growth
by Location:

Sections 2.4.3 — 2.4.6 highlight the
Lonsdale Regional City Centre and
adjacent Frequent Transit
Development Areas (FTDAs) as
areas where growth will be
concentrated into new multi-family
and mixed-use developments to
2041 and beyond.

Objectives 1.1.4,1.3.1,1.4.3, 1.4.5,
2.24,6.2.1,6.2.2,7.1.5,7.2.2,
8.1.1, and 8.2.3 support the
concentration of growth towards

The City of North Vancouver is
planning a comprehensive OCP
update, which will include a
more detailed analysis and
projections of population and
employment growth by
location.

The OCP update will also
include extending the Marine
Drive Frequent Transit
Development Area (FTDA) to
accommodate and support the

Page 24




e All Urban Centre Types: 40%

e Frequent Transit Development
Areas: 28%

Regional Targets for Employment Growth

by Location:

e All Urban Centre Types: 50%

e  Frequent Transit Development
Areas: 27%

the Regional City Centre and the
Frequent Transit Development
Areas, ensuring the primacy of the
Regional City Centre in the City.

anticipated residential and
employment growth. See OCP
Schedule E Regional Context
Statement Map which shows
the proposed expansion to the
Marine Drive FTDA.

1.2.23 b) ii) include policies and actions
for Urban Centres and Frequent Transit
Development Areas that: focus and
manage growth and development in
Urban Centres and Frequent Transit
Development Areas consistent with
guidelines set out in Table 3 (Guidelines
for Urban Centres and Frequent Transit
Development Areas) and demonstrate
how that growth will contribute to the
Urban Centre and Frequent Transit
Development Area targets set out in
Table 2 and Action 1.2.12

1.2.12 Implement the strategies and
actions of the Regional Growth Strategy
that contribute to regional targets as
shown on Table 2 to:

a) focus 98% of the region’s dwelling
unit growth to areas within the
Urban Containment Boundary;

b) focus 40% of the region’s dwelling
unit growth and 50% of the region’s
employment growth to Urban
Centres; and

c) focus 28% of the region’s dwelling
unit growth and 27% of the region’s
employment growth to Frequent
Transit Development Areas.

Objectives 1.1.4,1.3.1,1.4.3, 1.4.5,
2.24,6.2.1,6.2.2,7.1.5,7.2.2,
8.1.1, and 8.2.3 support the
concentration of growth towards
the Regional City Centre and the
Frequent Transit Development
Areas, ensuring the primacy of the
Regional City Centre in the City.

Please see OCP Schedule E Regional
Context Statement Map for the
boundaries of the Urban
Containment Boundary, Regional
City Centre, and the two FTDAs,
where growth is focused with
consistency to the guidelines in
Metro 2050 Table 3.

The proposed extension of the
Marine Drive Frequent Transit
Development Area (FTDA) will
accommodate and support the
anticipated residential and
employment growth.

Goal 3 Protect the Environment, Address Climate Change, and Respond to Natural Hazards

Targets

Policy with Target

Applicable OCP Policies

Supplementary Information

3.2.7 a) identify local ecosystem
protection and tree canopy cover
targets, and demonstrate how these
targets will contribute to the regional
targets in Action 3.2.1:

e increase the area of lands protected
for nature from 40% to 50% of the

Objectives 4.2.3,4.2.9, and 4.2.12
speak to protecting the local
ecosystem and environmentally
sensitive areas, riparian and
wetlands areas, and expanding the
urban forest.

The Climate & Environment
Strategy (2024) sets a canopy
target of 22-24% by 2035.

Pathway 1 of this strategy
supports the protection of local
ecosystems and the protection
and expansion of tree canopy.

Page 25




region’s land base by the year 2050;
and

e increase the total regional tree
canopy cover within the Urban
Containment Boundary from 32% to
40% by the year 2050.

The City of North Vancouver has
identified lands protected for
nature through its OCP, but
recognizes Metro Vancouver’s
desire for lands that are protected
for nature through more secure
means. The City is working on
identifying existing and potential
lands for protection through means
such as covenants and bylaws, and
will be included in a future OCP
update.

The City has an Urban Forest
Implementation Project that
aims to add canopy cover and
biodiversity by funding density
planting projects in Natural
Areas.

The City is developing an
Urban Forest Plan that will
provide a roadmap for
protecting and enhancing the
City’s tree canopy.

3.3.7 a) identify how local land use and
transportation policies will contribute to
meeting the regional greenhouse gas
emission reduction target of 45% below
2010 levels by the year 2030 and
achieving a carbon neutral region by the
year 2050;

Objective 4.1.1 states the City’s
greenhouse gas emissions target of
reducing community-wide
emissions by 15% below 2007 levels
by 2020, and 50% below 2007
levels by 2050. These figures were
adopted in 2014.

Chapters 1 & 2 in the City’s OCP
contain land use and transportation
policies that support the regional
GHG emissions reduction target.

The City’s land use designations
direct growth to the Regional City
Centre and the Frequent Transit
Development Areas, which brings
homes, shops, jobs, and services
close together to reduce trips and
increase access to transit.

The City’s Climate &
Environment Strategy (2024)
provides an updated target for
reducing greenhouse gas
emissions, committing to
becoming net zero by 2050.
Pathways 2 and 3 of this
strategy support the reduction
of GHG emissions.

This is further supported by the
City’s Mobility Strategy (2022)
which aims to increase mode
share of active transportation
and transit to 50% of all trips in
the City by 2030.

Goal 4 Provide Diverse and Affordable Housing Choices Target

Policy with Target

Applicable OCP Policies

Supplementary Information

4.2.7 a) indicate how they will, within
their local context, contribute toward the
regional target of having at least 15% of
newly completed housing units built
within all Urban Centres, Frequent
Transit Development Areas, and Major
Transit Growth Corridors combined, to
the year 2050, be affordable rental
housing units (recognizing that
developing affordable rental housing
units in transit-oriented locations
throughout the urban area is supported)

Objectives 1.1.4,1.3.1,2.2.4,7.1.5,
7.2.2,8.1.1, and 8.2.3 support the
concentration of growth towards
the Regional City Centre and the
Frequent Transit Development
Areas.

Objectives 1.5.2 - 1.5.5, and 1.5.7 —
1.5.9 supports the development of
a range of affordable hosing
options including non-market
housing, non-profit and affordable

The City has a Housing Target
Order that requires the
completion of 3,320 net new
housing units by June 2029, a
portion of which will include
below-market rental units.

To meet the legislated 20-year
housing needs set by the
Province, the City’s OCP and
Zoning Bylaw has added
additional housing capacity to
meet the identified need.

Page 26




rental housing, supportive housing,
and other tenure types.

Section 2.2 provides additional
support for acquiring rental housing
by permitting density bonusing.

Council has recently endorsed
an Inclusionary Housing policy
and adopted Zoning Bylaw
changes to adapt the City’s
existing Mid-Market Housing
policy into the new Provincial
legislative framework.

Additional reports and policy
documents published by the
City that support the OCP in
the provision of affordable
rental include the Housing
Needs Report (2021), Housing
Action Plan (2016),
Community Well-being
Strategy (2024), North Shore
Poverty Reduction Strategy
(2023), and Inclusionary
Housing Policy (2025).

Page 27




Metro 2050 Goal 1: Create a Compact Urban Area

Describe how the OCP and other supporting plans and policies contribute to this Goal:

The policies in the City of North Vancouver’s OCP help direct growth and redevelopment into a compact urban
form by focusing on the Lonsdale Regional City Centre and adjacent Frequent Transit Development Areas (FTDAs)
as urban centres (Chapter 1). Subsequent chapters of the OCP support the concentration of this growth and
redevelopment by ensuring that complementary transportation, environmental, recreational, social, and servicing
infrastructure are provided (Chapters 2—8). Additional plans and policies that support the OCP include the Housing
Action Plan (2016), Community Wellbeing Strategy (2024), and Climate & Environment Strategy (2024).

Goal 1 Targets

Policy with Target

Applicable OCP Policies

Supplementary Information

1.1.9 b) Provide Member Jurisdiction
population, dwelling unit, and
employment projections, with reference
to guidelines contained in Table 1, and
demonstrate how local plans will work
towards accommodating the projected
growth within the Urban Containment
Boundary in accordance with the
regional target of focusing 98% of
residential growth inside the Urban
Containment Boundary

Please see response in Targets
section

Please see response in Targets
section

1.2.23 a) provide dwelling unit and
employment projections that indicate
the Member Jurisdiction’s share of
planned growth and contribute to
achieving the regional share of growth
for Urban Centres and Frequent Transit
Development Areas as set out in Table 2
(Dwelling Unit and Employment Growth
Targets for Urban Centres and Frequent
Transit Development Areas)

Regional Targets for Residential Growth
by Location:

e All Urban Centre Types: 40%
e Frequent Transit Development
Areas: 28%

Regional Targets for Employment Growth
by Location:

e All Urban Centre Types: 50%

e  Frequent Transit Development
Areas: 27%

Please see response in Targets
section

Please see response in Targets
section

1.2.23 b) ii) include policies and actions
for Urban Centres and Frequent Transit
Development Areas that: focus and
manage growth and development in

Please see response in Targets
section

Please see response in Targets
section

Page 28




Urban Centres and Frequent Transit
Development Areas consistent with
guidelines set out in Table 3 (Guidelines
for Urban Centres and Frequent Transit
Development Areas) and demonstrate
how that growth will contribute to the
Urban Centre and Frequent Transit
Development Area targets set out in
Table 2 and Action 1.2.12

1.2.12 Implement the strategies and
actions of the Regional Growth Strategy
that contribute to regional targets as
shown on Table 2 to:

a) focus 98% of the region’s dwelling
unit growth to areas within the
Urban Containment Boundary;

b) focus 40% of the region’s dwelling
unit growth and 50% of the region’s
employment growth to Urban
Centres; and

c) focus 28% of the region’s dwelling
unit growth and 27% of the region’s
employment growth to Frequent
Transit Development Areas.

Strategy 1.1: Contain urban development within the Urban Containment Boundary

Section | Policy

Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

employment projections, with reference to guidelines
contained in Table 1, and demonstrate how local plans will
work towards accommodating the projected growth within
the Urban Containment Boundary in accordance with the
regional target of focusing 98% of residential growth inside
the Urban Containment Boundary

Policy 1.1.9

a) Depict the Urban Containment Boundary on a map, generally See OCP Schedule E Regional
consistent with the Regional Land Use Designations map (Map | Context Statement Map,

2) which indicates that the
entirety of the City is located
within the Metro Vancouver
Urban Containment Boundary.

b) Provide Member Jurisdiction population, dwelling unit, and

Please provide response in
Targets section

c) Include a commitment to liaise regularly with Metro
Vancouver Liquid Waste Services and Metro Vancouver Water
Services to keep them apprised of the scale and timeframe of
major development plans as well as specific plans to separate
combined sewers

This policy is not included in
the current OCP but will be
added in the next OCP update.

Page 29




d)

Integrate land use planning policies with local and regional
economic development strategies, particularly in the vicinity
of the port and airports, to minimize

potential exposure of residents to environmental noise and
other harmful impacts

Objectives 2.3.4 and 4.2.2
relate to minimizing the effects
of development to residents
and the environment. There
are no airports in the vicinity of
the City of North Vancouver.

Strategy 1.2: Focus growth in Urban Centres and Frequent Transit Development Areas

Policy 1.2.23

Section

Policy

Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

a) provide dwelling unit and employment projections that
indicate the Member Jurisdiction’s share of planned growth
and contribute to achieving the regional share of growth for Please provide response in
Urban Centres and Frequent Transit Development Areas as set Targets section
out in Table 2 (Dwelling Unit and Employment Growth Targets
for Urban Centres and Frequent Transit Development Areas)
b) include policies and actions for Urban Centres and Frequent
Transit Development Areas that: See below
i) identify the location, boundaries, and types of Urban Centres | See OCP Schedule E Regional
and Frequent Transit Development Areas on a map that is Context Statement Map.
consistent with the guidelines set out in Table 3 (Guidelines
for Urban Centres and Frequent Transit Development Areas)
and Map 4
if) focus and manage growth and development in Urban Centres
and Frequent Transit Development Areas consistent with
guidelines set out in Table 3 (Guidelines for Urban Centres and . .
. Please provide response in
Frequent Transit Development Areas) and demonstrate how T ST
that growth will contribute to the Urban Centre and Frequent
Transit Development Area targets set out in Table 2 and
Action 1.2.12
1) encourage office development to locate in Urban Centres Objectives 1.1.4 and 1.1.5
through policies, economic development programs, or other identify the Lonsdale Regional
financial incentives City Centre as the commercial
core of the City, encouraging a
concentration of uses —
including office, into this core.
Objectives 7.2.1,7.2.2,7.2.9,
7.2.10, and 7.2.11 seek to
increase the concentration of
economic activity — including
the provision of office space, in
the Lonsdale Regional City
Centre and FTDAs.
iv) support modal shift by establishing or maintaining reduced Objectives 2.2.2 and 7.2.10

residential and commercial parking requirements in Urban
Centres and FTDAs and consider the use of parking maximums

support a modal shift by
prioritizing sustainable forms
of transportation and reducing

Page 30




parking requirements in areas
in close proximity to transit.

Action 8C of the City’s Mobility
Strategy (2022) further
supports these objectives.

v)

consider the identification of appropriate measures and
neighbourhood plans to accommodate urban densification
and infill development in Urban Centres, Frequent Transit
Development Areas, and, where appropriate, Major Transit
Growth Corridors in a resilient and equitable way (e.g. through
community vulnerability assessments, emergency services
planning, tenant protection policies, and strategies to enhance
community social connectedness and adaptive capacity)

Objectives 1.1.4 and 1.5.1
support Lonsdale as the
Regional City Centre and
enable a wide range of housing
types to allow for flexible infill
densification.

Objectives 1.3.1 - 1.5.9, and
3.1.1 - 3.5.4 relate to the
diversity, resiliency,
equitability, and liveability of
densification and development
in the City.

Pathways 1, 4, and 5 of the
City’s Community Wellbeing
Strategy (2024), as well as the
Residential Tenant
Displacement Policy (2021)
further support these
objectives.

vi)

consider support for the provision of child care spaces in
Urban Centres and Frequent Transit Development Areas

Objectives 1.1.7 and 1.4.1
encourage child care services
and amenities in residential
areas and multi-family
developments.

Action 12 of the City’s Child
Care Action Plan (2020) further
supports these objectives.

vii)

consider the implementation of green infrastructure

Objective 8.3.3 refers to the
implementation of green
infrastructure.

viii)

focus infrastructure and amenity investments (such as public
works and civic and recreation facilities) in Urban Centres and
Frequent Transit Development Areas, and at appropriate
locations within Major Transit Growth Corridors

Objectives 1.4.5,2.2.4,8.1.1,
and 8.2.3 address the
corresponding investment in
and intensification of
infrastructure in the Lonsdale
Regional City Centre, FTDAs,
and other locations along
transit corridors experiencing
growth.

Objectives 1.1.2,1.1.6, 1.4.3,
1.4.5 and 2.1.3 refer to the
investment in commercial,

Page 31




residential, and cultural
amenities in the Lonsdale
Regional City Centre, FTDAs,
and other locations along
transit corridors experiencing
growth.

The City’s Asset Management
Plans support these objectives
and are being updated in
anticipation of future growth.

ix)

support the provision of community services and spaces for
non-profit organizations

Objective 1.4.3 supports the
provision of community
services and spaces,
particularly in high-density
neighbourhoods.

Pathway 6 of the City’s
Community Wellbeing
Strategy (2024) further
supports this objective.

x)

consider, where Urban Centres and Frequent Transit
Development Areas overlap with Employment lands, higher
density forms and intensification of commercial and light
industrial

Objectives 1.1.3-1.1.5,2.2.4,
7.2.2,7.2.6-7.2.9,and 7.2.12
recognize and support the
different uses of the
overlapping areas between
Urban Centre, FTDAs, and
Employment lands.

Xi)

take appropriate steps to avoid or mitigate the negative
health impacts of busy roadways on new or redeveloped
residential areas

Objective 4.2.2 and 4.2.14
refer to minimizing
environmental impacts and its
effects on residents of new
development.

Action 7D of the City’s Mobility
Strategy (2022) further
supports these objectives.

c)

Include policies for General Urban lands that:

See below.

identify General Urban lands and their boundaries on a map
generally consistent with Map 2

See OCP Schedule E Regional
Context Statement Map.

i)

exclude new non-residential Major Trip- Generating uses, as
defined in the Regional Context Statement, from those
portions of General Urban lands outside of Urban Centres and
Frequent Transit Development Areas and direct new non-
residential Major Trip-Generating uses to Urban Centres and
Frequent Transit Development Areas

See OCP Schedule A Land Use
Map which show the Urban
Centre and FTDAs, where
Major-Trip-Generating Uses
are permitted.

Objectives 1.1.4,7.1.5, and
7.2.2 support the
concentration of Major-Trip-
Generating Uses in the Urban
Centre and FTDAs.

Page 32




i)

encourage infill and intensification (e.g. row houses,
townhouses, mid-rise apartments, laneway houses) in
appropriate locations within walking distance of the Frequent
Transit Network;

Objective 2.2.4 encourages
infill and intensification in
appropriate locations within
walking distance of FTDAs.

The City’s Community
Wellbeing Strategy (2024) and
Density Bonus and Community
Benefits Policy (2018) further
support this objective.

iv) encourage neighbourhood-serving commercial uses Objective 1.1.6 supports the
provision of strategically
located neighbourhood-serving
commercial uses.

d) with regards to Actions 1.2.15 and 1.2.23 c) ii), include a This definition is not in the
definition of “non-residential Major Trip Generating uses” that | current OCP but will be added
includes, but is not limited to, the following uses: office or in the next OCP update.
business parks, outlet shopping malls, post-secondary
institutions, and large-format entertainment venues

e) consider the identification of new Frequent Transit See OCP Schedule E Regional
Development Areas in appropriate locations within Major Context Statement Map which
Transit Growth Corridors, as part of the development of new shows the proposed expansion
or amended area or neighbourhood plans, or other to the Marine Drive FTDA.
community planning initiatives

f) consider long-term growth and transportation planning Objectives 2.1.5, 2.1.8, and

coordination with adjacent municipalities, First Nations,
TransLink, and Metro Vancouver for transit corridors that run
through or along two or more adjacent jurisdictions

2.2.4 refer to the collaboration
between different
organizations in considering
long-term growth and
transportation planning.

Strategy 1.3: Develop resilient, healthy, connected, and complete communities with a range
of services and amenities

Policy 1.3.7

Section

Policy

Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

a)

support compact, mixed-use, transit, walking, cycling and
rolling-oriented communities

Objectives 2.1.1 - 2.3.10
support alternative modes of
transportation across the City.

Direction 1 of the City’s
Community Wellbeing
Strategy (2024) supports
building complete, connected,
social active communities,
where daily needs are met
within a short walk or roll of
every home.

10

Page 33




Action 8A of the City’s Mobility
Strategy (2022) further
supports these objectives.

b) locate and support community, arts, cultural, recreational, Objectives 1.4.3, 6.2.2, and
institutional, medical/health, social service, education and 7.1.4 support Lonsdale
child care facilities, and local serving retail uses in Urban Regional City Centre and other
Centres or areas with good access to transit high-density neighbourhoods
in accommodating a variety of
community, arts, cultural,
recreational, and other uses.
c) provide and encourage public spaces and other place-making Objectives 1.4.3,5.1.2,5.1.4,
amenities and facilities (e.g. community gardens, playgrounds, | 5.1.5, and 5.2.1 — 5.3.6 support
gathering places, etc.) in new and established the provision of public spaces
neighbourhoods, for all ages, abilities, and seasons, to support | and other place-making
social connections and engagement amenities and facilities for
people of all ages and abilities
in every season.
d) respond to health and climate change-related risks by See below.

providing equitable access to:

recreation facilities

Objective 5.1.2, 5.2.3, 5.2.4,
and 5.2.5 promote accessibility
to recreation facilities in the
City.

The City’s Community
Recreation Strategy (2020)
further supports these
objectives.

i)

green spaces and public spaces (e.g. parks, trails, urban
forests, public squares, etc.)

Objectives 1.3.10, 5.1.2, 5.2.3,
5.3.1, and 5.3.5 promote
accessibility to green spaces
and other public spaces in the
City.

The City’s Parks Master Plan
(2010) further supports these
objectives.

i)

safe and inviting walking, cycling, and rolling environments,
including resting spaces with tree canopy coverage, for all
ages and abilities

Objectives 2.1.1, 2.3.2, and
2.3.5 support safe and
accessible active transportation
throughout the City.

Strategy 1 of the City’s
Mobility Strategy (2022)
further supports these
objectives.

The City is developing a city-
wide sidewalk assessment
which will identify and quantify
the condition, function, and

11

Page 34




accessibility of existing
sidewalks.

e) support the inclusion of community gardens (at-grade, Objecti'ves 3'4'? -3.4.5 '
rooftop, or on balconies), grocery stores and farmers’ markets | F€Cognize the 'C'_ty srolein
to support food security, and local production, distribution providing nutritious, hea'lt.hy,
and consumption of healthy food, in particular where they are and- local T°°d opportunities
easily accessible to housing and transit services for its residents.

The City’s Community
Wellbeing Strategy (2024)
further supports these
objectives.

f) consider, when preparing new neighbourhood and area plans, | Obiectives 1'4'4" ?3'1'0' and
the mitigation of significant negative social and health 5.2.8 .relate to mitigating the
impacts, such as through the use of formal health and social .negatlve social and health
impact assessment methods in neighbourhood design and impacts of new development
major infrastructure investments through thoughtful planning

and design principles and
practices.

Pathways 1 and 4 of the City’s
Community Wellbeing
Strategy (2024) further support
these objectives.

g) provide design guidance for existing and new neighbourhoods | Objectives 1.3.10,.and 3.2.1-
to promote social connections, universal accessibility, crime 3.2.3 promote social o
prevention through environmental design, and inclusivity conne'ctedness, ac'ce55|b|||ty,
while considering the impacts of these strategies on identified | and crime prevention through
marginalized members of the community thoughtful planning and design

principles and practices.

These objectives are supported
by the Development Permit
Guidelines in Division VIl of the
City’s Zoning Bylaw (1995).

h) consider where appropriate, opportunities to incorporate Objective'7.2.1 relates to t'he
recognition of Indigenous and other cultures into the planning pa-lrtnerslhlp and collaboration
of Urban Centres, FTDAs, and other local centres with Indigenous Groups to

achieve economic objectives.

The City’s Community

Wellbeing Strategy (2024)

further supports this objective.
Strategy 1.4: Protect Rural lands from urban development

Section | Policy Applicable OCP Policies

>

L—" Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

]

a 13 identify Rural lands and their boundaries on a map generally N/A
consistent with Map 2

12

Page 35




b)

limit development to a scale, form, and density consistent
with the intent for the Rural land use designation, and that is
compatible with on-site sewer servicing

N/A

specify the allowable density and form, consistent with Action
1.4.1, for land uses within the Rural regional land use
designation

N/A

prioritize and support agricultural uses within the Agricultural
Land Reserve, and where appropriate, support agricultural
uses outside of the Agricultural Land Reserve

N/A

support the protection, enhancement, restoration, and
expansion of ecosystems identified on Map 11 to maintain
ecological integrity, enable ecosystem connectivity, increase
natural carbon sinks and enable adaptation to the impacts of
climate change

N/A

13

Page 36




Metro 2050 Goal 2: Support a Sustainable Economy

Describe how the OCP and other supporting plans and policies contribute to this Goal:

The policies within the City of North Vancouver’s OCP recognize the importance of supporting and enhancing its
existing local economy while fostering an environment that encourages new economic pursuits to create a diverse
economy. The City is fortunate to have a vibrant urban centre, as well as a thriving port, which provide abundant
economic opportunities. Chapters 2 and 8 of the OCP support the existing and future economy by directing
economic growth to these hubs, optimizing the movement of people and goods, and aligning infrastructure and
servicing needs accordingly. The OCP is strongly supported by the City’s Economic Development Strategy (2023),
which provides updated guidance to support innovation-driven employment growth, marine and logistics sector
expansion, and retention of commercial and office uses in key nodes. The Strategy also emphasizes workforce
attraction, land intensification, and targeted support for key sectors including health, clean tech, and the creative
economy.

Strategy 2.1 Promote land development patterns that support a diverse regional economy
and employment opportunities close to where people live

Section | Policy Applicable OCP Policies
Adopt Regional Context Statements that:
a) include policies to support appropriate economic Objectives 1.1.3 and 1.1.5 support
activities, as well as context-appropriate built form for economic support through provision
Urban Centres, Frequent Transit Development Areas, of jobs and commercial uses.
Industrial lands, and Employment lands
Objectives 1.1.4,2.2.4,7.2.2, and
7.2.8 support the concentration of
economic growth around the
Lonsdale Regional City Centre and
FTDAs.
o
-
— Objectives 2.5.3,7.2.6,7.2.7,7.2.9,
N and 7.2.12 provide support for the
3 City’s industrial and employment
% lands.
a
Tactic 1.3 of the City’s Economic
Development Strategy (2023)
further supports these objectives.
b) support the development and expansion of large-scale Objectives 1.1.4,1.1.5, and 7.2.2
office and retail uses in Urban Centres, and lower-scale support the appropriate
uses in Frequent Transit Development Areas through development and expansion of office
policies such as: zoning that reserves land for and commercial uses in the Urban
commercial uses, density bonus provisions to encourage | Centre and FTDAs.
office development, variable development cost charges,
and/or other incentives Objective 7.2.8 encourages
additional floor area devoted to
employment-generating uses.

14

Page 37




c)

discourage the development and expansion of major
commercial uses outside of Urban Centres and Frequent
Transit Development Areas and that discourage the
development of institutional land uses outside of Urban
Centres and Frequent Transit Development Areas

Objectives 1.1.4,7.1.5, and 7.2.2
support Lonsdale Regional City
Centre and the FTDAs as the
commercial and institutional cores of
the City, discouraging development
and expansion elsewhere.

Strategy 2.2 Protect the supply and enhance the efficient use of Industrial land

Policy 2.2.9

Section

Policy Text

Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

a) identify the Industrial and Employment lands and their See OCP Schedule E Regional
boundaries on a map generally consistent with Map 7 Context Statement Map.

b) identify Trade-Oriented lands, if applicable, with a See OCP Schedule A Land Use Map,
defined set of permitted uses that support inter- which identifies industrial lands
regional, provincial, national, and international trade situated around the City’s waterfront
(e.g. logistics, warehouses, distribution centres, port that are crucial in supporting
transportation and intermodal terminals) and location inter-regional, provincial, national,
needs (e.g. large and flat sites, proximity to highway, and international trade.
port, or rail infrastructure) on a map consistent with the
goals in the Regional Growth Strategy. Strata and/or
small lot subdivisions on these lands should not be
permitted

c) include policies for Industrial lands that: See below.

i) consistently define, support, and protect Industrial uses, | Objectives 7.2.6,7.2.7, and 7.2.9
as defined in Metro 2050, in municipal plans and bylaws, | Provide support to and protect the
and ensure that non-industrial uses are not permitted City’s industrial land.

Objective 7.2.12 ensures that uses
on industrial lands are appropriate
for their location and consistent with
the intent of the industrial lands.

i) support appropriate and related accessory uses, such as | Objectives 7.2.7 and 7.2.12 support
limited-scale ancillary commercial spaces, and caretaker | @uxiliary uses on these lands, such as
units limited-scale ancillary commercial

spaces and caretaker units.

i) exclude uses that are not consistent with the intent of Objective 7.2.12 ensures that uses
Industrial lands and not supportive of Industrial on industrial lands are appropriate
activities, such as medium and large format retail uses, for their location and consistent with
residential uses, and stand- alone office uses, other than | the intent of the industrial lands.
ancillary uses, where deemed necessary

iv) encourage improved utilization and increased Objective 7.2.6, 7.2.9, and 7.2.12
intensification/densification of Industrial lands for refer to the improved utilization and
Industrial activities, including the removal of any increased intensification of industrial
unnecessary municipal policies or regulatory barriers lands.
related to development form and density

v) review and update parking and loading requirements to | Objectives 2.2.2 and 7.2.10 support

reflect changes in Industrial forms and activities, ensure
better integration with the surrounding character, and

the strategic managing of parking
and loading requirements to reflect
changes in activities and demand,

15

Page 38




reflect improvements to transit service, in an effort to
avoid the over- supply of parking

ensure better integration with
surrounding character, encourage
alternative modes of transportation,
and avoid an over-supply of parking.

Tactic 1.6 of the City’s Economic
Development Strategy (2023)
further supports these objectives.

vi) explore municipal Industrial strategies or initiatives that | Objectives 7.2.9.and 7.2.12
support economic growth objectives with linkages to influence land use planning to
land use planning support the economic growth and

intensification of industrial lands.
Tactic 1.3 of the City’s Economic
Development Strategy (2023)
further supports these objectives.

vii) provide infrastructure and services in support of existing | Objective 7.2.9 provides
and expanding Industrial activities infrastructure and servicing support

for industrial activities.

Additional support for industrial uses
will be incorporated into future
updates to the City’s Asset
Management Plans.

viii) support the unique locational and infrastructure needs Objective 2.1.10 and 7.2.6 support
of rail-oriented, waterfront, and trade-oriented the goods movement and
Industrial uses infrastructure needs of the Port

lands.

ix) consider the preparation of urban design guidelines for | Objectives 1.2.1,4.2.2,4.2.3 and
Industrial land edge planning, such as interface designs, | 4-2-5 address the relationship
buffering standards, or tree planting, to minimize between industrial land uses and
potential land use conflicts between Industrial and other land uses, aiming to minimize
sensitive land uses, and to improve resilience to the the effects of industrial uses and
impacts of climate change improve environmental resilience.

The City does not have design
guidelines for industrial lands.

X) do not permit strata and/or small lot subdivisions on The current OCP does not prohibit
identified Trade-Oriented lands the stratification or subdivision of

Trade-Oriented lands, but will be
added in the next OCP update.

d) include policies for Employment lands that: See below.

support a mix of Industrial, small scale commercial and
office, and other related employment uses, while
maintaining support for the light Industrial capacity of
the area, including opportunities for the potential
densification/intensification of Industrial activities,
where appropriate

Section 2.4.4 identifies Lower
Lonsdale as a mixed employment
hub supporting industrial and small-
scale commercial uses.

Objectives 7.2.7,7.2.9, and 7.2.12
support the City’s mixed
employment areas.

i)

allow large and medium format retail, where
appropriate, provided that such development will not

The current OCP does not explicitly
support large and medium format
retail development, but are implicitly

16

Page 39




undermine the broad objectives of the Regional Growth
Strategy

encouraged to be located in the
Urban Centre and FTDAs.

i)

support the objective of concentrating larger- scale
commercial, higher density forms of employment, and
other Major Trip-Generating uses in Urban Centres, and
local-scale uses in Frequent Transit Development Areas

Objectives 1.1.4,1.1.5,7.2.2, and
7.2.8 support the concentration of
larger-scale commercial, higher
forms of residential, and other Major
Trip-Generating Uses in the City’s
Urban Centre, and local-scale uses in
FTDAs.

iv) support higher density forms of commercial and light Objectives 1.1.4,7.2.7,and 7.2.9
Industrial development where Employment lands are support the appropriate density
located within Urban Centres or Frequent Transit forms and uses of development
Development Areas, and permit employment and within the Urban Centre, FTDAs, and
service activities consistent with the intent of Urban other lower density areas.
Centres or Frequent Transit Development Areas, while
low employment density and low transit generating
uses, possibly with goods movement needs and impacts,
are located elsewhere

v) do not permit residential uses, except for: Objective 7.2.12 ensures that the

. permitted uses on these lands are
e an accessory caretaker unit; or .
the most appropriate for the

e |imited residential uses (with an emphasis on location and land designation.

affordable, rental units) on lands within 200 m of a

rapid transit station and located within Urban Centres

or Frequent Transit Development Areas, provided that

the residential uses are located only on the upper

floors of buildings with commercial and light Industrial

uses, where appropriate and subject to the

consideration of municipal objectives and local

context.

e) include policies to assist existing and new businesses in Objectives 4.1.1,4.1.2, and 4.3.4
reducing their greenhouse gas emissions, maximizing support existing and new businesses
energy efficiency, and mitigating impacts on ecosystems | in reducing their climate footprint

and improving environmental
sustainability.

Tactic 4.2 of the City’s Economic
Development Strategy (2023)
further supports these objectives.

f) include policies that assist existing and new businesses Objectives 3.3.3 - 3.3.5, and 4.1.3

to adapt to the impacts of climate change and reduce
their exposure to natural hazards risks, such as those
identified within the Regional Growth Strategy (Table 5)

support existing and new businesses
in adapting to climate change,
reducing exposure to natural hazard
risks, and responding to natural
hazards.

The City works together with North
Shore Emergency Management
(NSEM) to help residents and
prepare for, respond to, and recover
from emergencies and disasters.

17

Page 40




Strategy 2.3 Protect the supply of agricultural land and strengthen Agricultural viability

Policy 2.3.12

Section

Policy

Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

a)

specify the Agricultural lands within their juris- diction,
denoting those within the Agricultural Land Reserve, on
a map generally consistent with Map 8

Metro 2050 does not identify
Agricultural Lands within the City of
North Vancouver.

b)

consider policies and programs that increase markets
and the distribution of local food in urban areas to
strengthen the viability of agriculture and increase
availability of local food for all residents

N/A

c)

include policies that protect the supply of Agricultural
land and strengthen agriculture viability including those
that:

N/A

assign appropriate land use designations to protect
Agricultural land for future generations and discourage
land uses on Agricultural lands that do not directly
support and strengthen Agricultural viability

N/A

i)

encourage the consolidation of small parcels and
discourage the subdivision and fragmentation of
Agricultural land

N/A

i)

support climate change adaptation including:

e monitoring storm water, flooding, and sea level rise
impacts on Agricultural land,

e implementing flood construction requirements for
residential uses, and

e maintaining and improving drainage and irrigation
infrastructure that support Agricultural production,
where appropriate and in collabo- ration with other
governments and agencies

N/A

protect the integrity of Agricultural land by requiring
edge planning along the Urban Containment Boundary
and adjacent to Agricultural operations through activities
such as screening, physical buffers, roads, or
Development Permit area requirements

N/A

v)

demonstrate support for economic development
opportunities for Agricultural operations that are farm
related uses, benefit from close proximity to farms, and
enhance primary Agricultural production as defined by
the Agricultural Land Commission Act

N/A

vi)

align policies and regulations, where applicable, with the
Minister's Bylaw Standards and Agricultural Land
Commission legislation and regulations

N/A

Po

Section

Policy

Supplementary Information

18

Page 41




In partnership with other agencies and organizations, N/A
support agricultural awareness and promote the
importance of the agricultural industry, the importance
of protecting agricultural land, and the value of local
agricultural products and experiences

19

Page 42




Metro 2050 Goal 3: Protect the Environment, Address Climate Change, and
Respond to Natural Hazards

Describe how the OCP and other supporting plans and policies contribute to this Goal:

The City of North Vancouver’s parks, open spaces, and natural environment are key elements that contribute to
the beauty and identity of the city. The policies within the OCP recognize the importance of the environmental
features and functions these spaces provide and seek to protect, preserve, and reacquire them. Chapters 1, 2, 4
and 5 of our OCP aim to preserve, protect, enhance, and acquire existing and future conservation and recreation
lands; reduce greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption across transportation and development sectors;
and mitigate challenges related to climate change and natural hazards. Additional plans and policies supporting
the OCP include the Climate & Environment Strategy (2024), Community Energy and Emissions Plan (2010), 100-
Year Sustainability Vision (2009), Urban Forest Management Plans (2007), Parks Master Plan (2010), Stream and
Drainage System Protection Bylaw (2003), Integrated Stormwater Management Plan (2016), and Streamside
Protection & Enhancement Development Permit Guidelines (2022).

Goal 3 Targets

Policy with Target Applicable OCP Policies Supplementary Information

3.2.7 a) identify local ecosystem
protection and tree canopy cover
targets, and demonstrate how
these targets will contribute to the
regional targets in Action 3.2.1:

e increase the area of lands

orotected for nature from 40% P/ea'se see response in Targets P/ea'se see response in Targets
section. section.
to 50% of the region’s land
base by the year 2050; and
e increase the total regional tree
canopy cover within the Urban
Containment Boundary from
32% to 40% by the year 2050.
3.3.7 a) identify how local land use
and transportation policies will
contribute to meeting the regional
greenhouse gas emission reduction | Please see response in Targets Please see response in Targets
target of 45% below 2010 levels by | section. section.

the year 2030 and achieving a
carbon neutral region by the year
2050;

Strategy 3.1: Protect and enhance Conservation and Recreation lands

Section | Policy Applicable OCP Policies
<)) Adopt Regional Context Statements that:
-
! | a) identify Conservation and Recreation lands and their See OCP Schedule E Regional
3 boundaries on a map generally consistent with Map 2 Context Statement Map.
% b) include policies that support the protection and See below.
o

enhancement of lands with a Conservation and
Recreation land use designation, which may include the
following uses:

20

Page 43




drinking water supply areas

Objectives 4.2.15, 8.1.7, and 8.2.1
support the drinking water supply
areas within the City.

The City is supportive of a Regional
Water System Risk Assessment Plan
with Metro Vancouver and the North
Shore municipalities.

i)

environmental conservation areas

Objectives 4.2.3 and 4.2.4 supports
the identification and acquisition of
environmentally sensitive
properties, and the protection and
enhancement of these areas.

i)

wildlife management areas and ecological
reserves

Objectives 4.2.3, 4.2.8, and 4.2.10
support the protection,
enhancement, and restoration of
environmentally sensitive areas and
wildlife habitats.

Pathway 1 of the City’s Climate &
Environment Strategy (2024) further
support these objectives.

iv)

forests

Objective 4.2.12 supports the
protection and expansion of the
urban forest in the City.

Pathway 1 of the City’s Climate &
Environment Strategy (2024) further
support these objectives.

wetlands (e.g. freshwater lakes, ponds,
bogs, fens, estuarine, marine, freshwater,
and intertidal ecosystems)

vi)

riparian areas (i.e. the areas and vegetation
surrounding wetlands, lakes, streams, and rivers)

Objectives 4.2.8 — 4.2.10 supports
the protection and restoration of
riparian and wetland areas in the
City.

Pathway 1 of the City’s Climate &
Environment Strategy (2024) further
support these objectives.

The City’s Stream and Drainage
System Protection Bylaw (2003) and
Streamside Protection and
Enhancement Development Permit
Guidelines (2022) further support
these objectives.

vii)

ecosystems not covered above that may be
vulnerable to climate change and natural hazard
impacts, or that provide buffers to climate change
impacts or natural hazard impacts for communities

N/A

viii)

uses within those lands that are appropriately located,
scaled, and consistent with the intent of the designation,
including:

o major parks and outdoor recreation areas;

Section 2.1.3 outlines the intent of
the City’s Parks, Recreation, and
Open Space land use designation.

21

Page 44




o education, research and training facilities, and
associated uses that serve conservation and/or
recreation users;

o commercial uses, tourism activities, and public,
cultural, or community amenities;
limited agricultural use, primarily soil-based; and

o land management activities needed to minimize
vulnerability / risk to climate change impacts

Objectives 1.2.1,4.2.2,4.2.3,5.1.1,
and 5.1.9 support the intended uses
of this designation.

The City’s Urban Forest
Management Plans (2007), Parks
Master Plan (2010), and Climate &
Environment Strategy (2024) further
support these objectives.

c) Include policies that: See below.

i) protect the integrity of lands with a Conservation and Objective 1.2.1, 4.2.2, and 4.2.3
Recreation regional land use designation from activities ensure the protection of
in adjacent areas by considering wildland interface conservation and recreational land
planning, and introducing measures such as physical from activities from adjacent land
buffers or development permit requirements uses. Special consideration will be

given to Streamside Protection Areas
outlined in Section 2.5.

i) encourage the consolidation of small parcels, Objectives 4.2.8, and 4.2.9 relate to
and discourage subdivision and fragmentation the protection and restoration of
of lands with a Conservation and Recreation isolated environmentally sensitive
regional land use designation. areas.

Strategy 3.2: Protect, enhance, restore, and connect ecosystems
Section | Policy Text Applicable OCP Policies

Policy 3.2.7

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

a) identify local ecosystem protection and tree canopy , .
. Please provide response in Targets
cover targets, and demonstrate how these targets will .
. . . . section
contribute to the regional targets in Action 3.2.1
b) refer to Map 11 or more detailed local ecological and See below.

cultural datasets and include policies that:

support the protection, enhancement, and
restoration of ecosystems through measures

such as land acquisition, density bonusing,
development permit requirements, subdivision
design, conservation covenants, land trusts, and tax
exemptions

Objectives 4.2.4,4.2.5,5.1.1, and
5.1.9 support the protection,
enhancement, and restoration of
ecosystems through means like land
acquisition, density bonusing, and
other creative solutions.

seek to acquire, restore, enhance, and protect

lands, in collaboration with adjacent member
jurisdictions and other partners, that will enable
ecosystem connectivity in a regional green infrastructure
network

Objectives 4.2.4, 4.2.9,4.2.10, and
5.1.3 relate to the acquisition,
restoration, enhancement,
protection, and collaboration with
other jurisdictions and partners
concerning conservation and
recreation lands.

The City’s Biodiversity and Natural
Areas Report (2023) identifies the
natural habitat network which aligns
with the Regional Green
Infrastructure Network identified by
Metro Vancouver.

22

Page 45




i)

discourage or minimize the fragmentation of
ecosystems through low impact development
practices that enable ecosystem connectivity

Objectives 4.2.2 —4.2.6 encourage
sustainable development and
growth that minimizes
environmental impacts and place
protections on environmentally
sensitive areas.

iv) indicate how the interface between ecosystems and Section 2.5 and Objectives 4.2.3,
other land uses will be managed to maintain ecological 4.2.5, and 4.2.6 relate to the use of
integrity using edge planning, and measures such as creative solutions and re-greening to
physical buffers, or development permit requirements. manage ecological integrity between
ecosystems and other land uses.
The City’s Streamside Protection
and Enhancement Development
Permit Guidelines (2022) further
support these objectives.

Include policies that: See below.

support the consideration of natural assets and
ecosystem services in land use decision-making and land
management practices

Objective 8.3.3 supports the
consideration of natural assets,
green infrastructure, and other
naturalized development strategies
in land use decision-making and
management.

The City is planning on developing an
inventory and valuation of existing
ecosystem services to inform a
natural asset management plan.

i)

enable the retention and expansion of urban

forests using various tools, such as local tree

canopy cover targets, urban forest management
strategies, tree regulations, development permit
requirements, land acquisition, street tree planting, and
reforestation or restoration policies, with consideration
of resilience

Objectives 4.2.3, 4.2.4,4.2.10, and
4.2.12 support the protection,
restoration, and expansion of urban
forests through land acquisition and
land use controls.

The City’s Climate & Environment
Strategy (2024), Urban Forest
Management Plans (2007), Parks
Master Plan (2010), and Tree Bylaw
(2022) further support these
objectives.

i)

reduce the spread of invasive species by

employing best practices, such as the implementation of
soil removal and deposit bylaws, development permit
requirements, and invasive species management plans

Objectives 4.2.11 aims to reduce the
density and distribution of invasive
species to protect biodiversity and
ensure public safety.

The City’s Invasive Plant
Management Strategy (2013)
further supports this objective.

The City also conducts a city-wide
Invasive Species Inventory every 5
years which is used on a yearly basis

23

Page 46




to inform invasive species treatment
programs.

development and implementation of Integrated
Stormwater Management Plans, and water conservation
objectives.

iv) increase green infrastructure along the Regional Objectives 5.1.1, 5.1.3, and 5.1.4
Greenway Network, the Major Transit Network, support the continual maintenance,
community greenways, and other locations, where improvement, and expansion of the
appropriate, and in collaboration with Metro Vancouver, | City’s existing trail/greenway
TranslLink, and other partners network that reflects the needs and

expectations of the community.

v) support watershed and ecosystem planning, the Objectives 1.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.1.7, 8.1.8,

8.2.1, 8.3.2, and 8.3.3 currently
support watershed and ecosystem
planning.

The City’s Integrated Stormwater
Management Plan (2016) further
supports these objectives.

The City works together with the
Provincial and Local governments,
and the Tsleil-Waututh Nation to
support the Burrard Inlet Water
Quality Objectives, which help
manage the water quality and
protect the water values associated
with the Burrard Inlet’s marine
waters and freshwater tributaries.

Strategy 3.3: Advance land use, infrastructure, and human settlement patterns that reduce
energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions, create carbon storage opportunities, and
improve air quality

Section

Policy

Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

Policy 3.3.7

that reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas
emissions, create carbon storage opportunities, and
improve air quality from land use, infrastructure, and
settlement patterns, such as:
existing building retrofits and construction of new
buildings to meet energy and greenhouse gas
performance guidelines or standards (e.g. BC Energy
Step Code, passive design), the electrification of
building heating systems, green demolition
requirements, embodied emissions policies, zero-
carbon district energy systems, and energy recovery
and renewable energy generation technologies, such

a) identify how local land use and transportation policies
will contribute to meeting the regional greenhouse gas e R TR ) T
emission reduction target of 45% below 2010 levels by .
the year 2030 and achieving a carbon neutral region by section
the year 2050
b) identify policies, actions, incentives, and / or strategies Objectives 1.2.1 —1.2.3 support the

retrofitting of existing buildings and
construction of new buildings to
meet new energy, waste, and GHG
standards and practices.

Objective 8.3.1 ensures that new
and retrofitted buildings are adapted
and resilient to future climatic
conditions throughout its lifespan.

Pathway 2 of the City’s Climate &
Environment Strategy (2024) further
supports these objectives.

24

Page 47




as solar panels and geoexchange systems, and zero
emission vehicle charging infrastructure; and

community design, infrastructure, and programs that
encourage transit, cycling, rolling and walking

Objectives 1.1.1,1.1.2,1.1.4,1.2.1,
1.4.4, and 1.4.5 refer to the design
and infrastructure that supports
active transportation.

Objectives 1.3.10,2.1.1,2.1.4 -
2.19,2.2.1-2.2.6,and 2.3.1 -
2.3.10 refer to the programs,
initiatives, and supports that
encourage a modal shift to
sustainable transportation.

c)

focus infrastructure and amenity investments in Urban
Centres and Frequent Transit Development Areas, and at
appropriate locations along Major Transit Growth
Corridors

Objectives 1.1.2,1.1.6,1.4.3,1.4.5,
2.1.3,2.2.4,8.1.1, and 8.2.3 refer to
the focus of infrastructure and
amenity investments in the Urban
Centre, FTDAs, and other
appropriate locations.

The City’s Asset Management Plans
support these objectives and are
being updated in anticipation of
future growth.

Strategy 3.4 Advance land use, infrastructure, and human settlement patterns that improve
resilience to climate change impacts and natural hazards

Policy 3.4.5

Section

Policy

Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

a)

include policies that minimize risks associated

with climate change and natural hazards in existing
communities through tools such as heat and air quality
response plans, seismic retrofit policies, and flood-
proofing policies

Objectives 1.2.1, 1.2.2d, and 8.3.1
ensure that new and existing
development is adaptable, resilient,
and informed by climate science in
the face of climate change and
natural hazards.

Section 2.5 contains the Hazard
Lands (HZ) Development Permit Area
designation which provides
protections for hazardous land
within 200-year flood plains or steep
areas.

The City’s Integrated Stormwater
Management Plan (2016) and
Streamside Protection and
Enhancement Development Permit
Guidelines (2022) further support
these objectives.

b)

include policies that discourage new development in
current and future hazardous

Objectives 1.2.1, 3.2.4,4.1.4, and
8.1.2 ensure that new developments

25

Page 48




areas to the extent possible through tools such as land
use plans, hazard-specific Development Permit Areas,
and managed retreat policies, and where development
in hazardous areas is unavoidable, mitigate risks

avoid hazardous areas where
possible, and risks are mitigated
through climate-proofing
development and regular climate
change research and consideration.

Section 2.5 contains the Hazard
Lands (HZ) Development Permit Area
designation which provides
protections for hazardous land
within 200-year flood plains or steep
areas.

Section | Policy
Incorporate climate change and natural Objectives 1.2.1,4.1.3,4.1.4, 4.2.16,
hazard risk assessments into planning and location and 8.1.2 support the continual,
decisions for new municipal utilities, assets, operations, iterative process of integrating
© and community services. climate change research and natural
:"'; hazard risk assessments into
; planning decisions.
E Utility modeling and IDF curve
monitoring are examples of how the
City incorporates climate change and
natural hazard research into local
planning and infrastructure decision
making.
Section | Policy
Integrate emergency management, utility Objectives 3.3.1-3.3.6,4.1.3, and
planning, and climate change adaptation principles when | 4.2.2 support the incorporation of
preparing land use plans, transportation plans, and mitigation and recovery strategies
growth management policies. into broader plans and policy
documents to support communities
N . .
< in the face of climate change and
o) emergency events.
)
% Action 11D of the City’s Mobility
a Strategy (2022) further supports
these objectives.
The City’s Municipal Emergency Plan
(2007), created with North Shore
Emergency Management (NSEM),
further supports these objectives.
Section | Policy
(-] Adopt appropriate planning standards, Objective 4.1.4 relates to the
< guidelines, and best practices related to climate change management of development in
"; and natural hazards, such as flood hazard management relation to climate-related hazards
O guidelines and wildland urban interface fire risk such as unstable slopes and floods.
E reduction principles.

Objective 8.3.3 relate to the use of
green infrastructure or naturalized

26

Page 49




engineering strategies to mitigate
risk of storms and flooding.

Section 2.5 contains the Hazard
Lands (HZ) Development Permit Area
designation which guide
development in hazardous areas.

The City’s Integrated Stormwater
Management Plan (2016) and
Streamside Protection and
Enhancement Development Permit
Guidelines (2022) further supports
these objectives.

27

Page 50




Metro 2050 Goal 4: Provide Diverse and Affordable Housing Choices

Describe how the OCP and other supporting plans and policies contribute to this Goal:

The City of North Vancouver recognizes its role in providing diverse and affordable housing options in a market
facing an affordability and supply crisis. The policies in the Official Community Plan (OCP), along with supporting
plans and strategies, reflect the City’s commitment to being a place where residents can afford to live, work, and
play. Chapter 1 of the OCP contains policies that support the provision of a range of housing types and tenures,
from non-market rental housing to supportive housing. Additional plans and policies that support the OCP include
the Housing Needs Report (2021), Interim Housing Needs Report (2024), Housing Action Plan (2016), Community
Well-being Strategy (2024), Economic Development Strategy (2023), North Shore Poverty Reduction Strategy
(2023), Residential Tenant Displacement Policy (2021), and Mid-Market Rental Policy (2022).

Goal 4 Targets

Policy with Target Applicable OCP Policies Supplementary Information

4.2.7 a) indicate how, within the
local context, contribute toward the
regional target of having at least
15% of newly completed housing
units built within all Urban Centres
and Frequent Transit Development
Areas combined, to the year 2050,
be affordable rental housing units
(recognizing that developing
affordable rental housing units in
transit-oriented locations
throughout the urban area is
supported)

Please see response in Targets Please see response in Targets
section. section.

Strategy 4.1 Expand the supply and diversity of housing to meet a variety of needs

Section | Policy Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

a) indicate how you will work towards meeting Objectives 1.5.1 — 1.5.9 informed
estimated future housing needs and demand, as the City’s Housing Needs Report
determined in their housing needs report or assessment (2021), which indicates the City’s
commitment to meeting current
and future housing needs and
demand.

The City’s Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024) identified a 20-year
housing unit need using Provincial
methodology. The City is working to
ensure that the Zoning Bylaw
(1995) and OCP will allow the
necessary capacity to
accommodate the housing unit
needs identified by the Province.

Policy 4.1.8

28

Page 51




b)

articulate how local plans and policies will meet the need
for diverse (in tenure, size, and type) and affordable
housing options

Objectives 1.5.1 —1.5.9 support the
provision of affordable and diverse
housing options.

Local plans and policies supporting
the OCP include but are not limited
to our: Housing Action Plan (2016),
Housing Needs Report (2021),
CNV4ME (2016), Mid-Market
Rental Policy (2022), Adaptable
Design Policy (1998), and Active
Design Guidelines (2015).

The City is working on an
inclusionary housing framework,
which will include a revised
inclusionary housing policy, and the
integration of inclusionary zoning
into the City’s Zoning Bylaw.

c)

identify policies and actions that contribute to the
following outcomes

See below.

increased supply of adequate, suitable, and
affordable housing to meet a variety of needs
along the housing continuum

Objective 1.5.1 -1.5.5, and 1.5.7
relate to increasing the diverse
supply of adequate, suitable, and
affordable housing along the
housing continuum.

Pathway 2 of the City’s Community
Wellbeing Strategy (2024) further
supports these objectives.

increased supply of family-friendly, age-friendly, and
accessible housing

Objectives 1.4.2,1.5.1, 1.5.5 and
1.5.6 support the provision of
family-friendly, age-friendly, and
accessible housing.

Actions under the City’s CNVAME
(2016), Housing Action Plan (2016),
and Community Wellbeing
Strategy (2024) further support the
provision of housing for all ages and
abilities.

i)

increased diversity of housing tenure options,
such as attainable homeownership, rental, co-op housing,
rent-to-own models, and cohousing

Objectives 1.5.1 - 1.5.5, and 1.5.8
support a range of options for
housing tenures and types.

The City’s Housing Action Plan
(2016) and Pathway 2 of the
Community Wellbeing Strategy
(2024) further support these
objectives.

iv)

increased density and supply of diverse
ground-oriented and infill housing forms in

Objectives 1.5.1 and 2.2.4a support
increasing density in the urban core

29

Page 52




low-density neighbourhoods, such as duplex,
four-plex, townhouse, laneway/coach houses, and
apartments, particularly in proximity to transit

and in proximity to transit with the
development of infill housing
forms.

integration of land use and transportation
planning such that households can reduce their combined
housing and transportation costs

Objectives 1.1.4,1.1.6, 2.2.1 and
2.2.3 relate to the integration of
land use and transportation
planning to reduce housing and
transportation costs.

vi)

increased social connectedness in multi-unit housing

Objectives 1.4.3 and 1.4.4 support
the use of active-design principles
and other recreational, cultural,
and community spaces to enhance
social connectedness.

Objectives 3.1.1 and 3.1.2 foster
social connectedness by
encouraging inclusive
environments, reducing barriers to
participation, and empowering
residents of the community.

The City’s Community Wellbeing
Strategy (2024) and Active Design
Guidelines (2015) further support
these objectives.

vii)

integrated housing within neighbourhood
contexts and high quality urban design

Objectives 1.3.1, 1.3.5, and 1.3.6
ensure that new housing units are
high quality and integrated within
neighbourhood contexts in an
appropriate way

viii)

existing and future housing stock that is low
carbon and resilient to climate change impacts
and natural hazards

Objectives 1.2.1 and 4.1.4 ensure
that existing and future housing
stock are resilient to climate change
and related hazards.

Pathway 2 of the City’s Climate &
Environment Strategy (2024)
further supports these objectives.

Policy 4.1.9

Section

Policy

Supplementary Information

Prepare a

nd implement housing strategies or action plans that:

a)

are aligned with housing needs reports or assessments,
and reviewed or updated every 5-10 years to ensure that
housing strategies or action plans are based on recent
evidence and responsive to current and future housing
needs

Please see the City of North
Vancouver’s Housing Action Plan
(2016), Housing Needs Report
(2021), Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024), and Pathway 2 of
the Community Wellbeing Strategy
(2024).

The City’s Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024) found that over the
next 20 years, the City of North

30

Page 53




Vancouver will need 21,301
additional housing units to address
both its underlying and future
housing needs.

The City’s Community Wellbeing
Strategy (2024) addresses housing
need through Tactic 2.14 to enable
and promote housing densities that
reflect the City’s housing need, as
established through the City’s
Housing Needs Report.

b)

are based on an assessment of local housing
market conditions, by tenure, including assessing housing
supply, demand, and affordability

Please see the City of North
Vancouver’s Housing Action Plan
(2016), Housing Needs Report
(2021), and Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024).

The City’s Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024) assesses the City’s
demographics and current and
future housing context, with the
following key takeaways: (1) the
City is growing faster than the
region, (2) housing needs in the City
are evolving with changing
demographics, and (3) housing
affordability continues to be a
significant issue in the City.

c)

identify housing priorities, based on the

assessment of local housing market conditions,
household incomes, changing population and

household demographics, climate change and

natural hazards resilience, and key categories of local
housing need, including specific statements about special
needs housing and the housing needs of equity-seeking
groups

Please see the City of North
Vancouver’s Housing Action Plan
(2016), Housing Needs Report
(2021), Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024), and Pathway 2 of
the Community Wellbeing Strategy
(2024).

The City’s Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024) identifies key
statements of housing need,
including the need for housing for
seniors, housing for families,
housing for Indigenous households,
and special needs housing among
others.

These housing priorities are
addressed in the City’s Community
Wellbeing Strategy (2024) tactics,
including Tactic 2.18 to promote
family friendly units, Tactic 2.20 to
partner and collaborate with

31

Page 54




Skwxwu7mesh Uxwumixw
(Squamish Nation) and salilwatat
(Tsleil-Waututh Nation) to learn
about housing needs of local First
Nations members and the City’s
urban Indigenous population, and
Tactic 2.22 to support accessibility
and aging in place.

d)

identify implementation measures within their
jurisdiction and financial capabilities, including actions set
out in Action 4.1.8

Please see the City of North
Vancouver’s Housing Action Plan
(2016), Housing Needs Report
(2021), Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024), and Pathway 2 of
the Community Wellbeing Strategy
(2024).

Pathway 2 in the City’s Community
Wellbeing Strategy (2024) to
expand the supply and improve the
quality, diversity, and affordability
of housing in the City addresses
actions set out in Action 4.1.8. Key
tactics to support implementation
include Tactic 2.7 to develop an
inclusionary housing policy, Tactic
2.11 to leverage senior government
funding and programs to deliver
affordable housing, and Priority
Project Two for Housing Supply,
Affordability, Suitability + Adequacy
Initiatives.

Strategy 4.2 Protect tenants and expand, retain, and renew rental housing supply

Policy 4.2.7

Section

Policy

Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

a)

indicate how they will, within their local context,
contribute toward the regional target of having at least
15% of newly completed housing units built within all
Urban Centres and Frequent Transit Development Areas
combined, to the year 2050, be affordable rental housing
units (recognizing that developing affordable rental
housing units in transit-oriented locations throughout the
urban area is supported)

Please provide response in Targets
section

b)

articulate how local plans and policies will mitigate
impacts on renter households, particularly during
redevelopment or densification of Urban Centres and
Frequent Transit Development Areas

The City’s Residential Tenant
Displacement Policy (2021)
supports the OCP in mitigating
impacts to tenants during
displacement events through
enhanced notice and financial
assistance.

32

Page 55




c)

identify the use of regulatory tools that protect and
preserve rental housing

Objective 1.5.4 supports the
retention, renewal, and
replacement of rental housing
units.

The City’s Density Bonus and
Community Benefits Policy (2018)
provides additional support to the
protection and preservation of
rental housing.

d)

identify policies and actions that contribute to the
following outcomes:

See Below.

increased supply of affordable rental housing in proximity
to transit and on publicly-owned land

Objectives 1.5.3 — 1.5.5 encourage
the development of affordable
rental housing through
collaboration with housing
partners, and using tools like
density bonusing and density
transfers.

The City’s Housing Action Plan
(2016) and Density Bonus and
Community Benefits Policy (2018)
further support these objectives.

i)

increased supply of market and below-market
rental housing through the renewal of aging
purpose-built rental housing and prevention of
net rental unit loss

Objectives 1.5.2 —1.5.5 support the
provision of market and below-
market housing, and preservation
of existing rental units.

The City’s Density Bonusing and
Community Benefits Policy (2018)
and Community Wellbeing
Strategy (2024) further support
these objectives.

i)

protection and renewal of existing non-market
rental housing

Objective 1.5.4 incentivizes the
retention, renewal, and
replacement of existing rental units
with density bonusing and
transfers.

The City’s Density Bonus and
Community Benefits Policy (2018)
further supports this objective.

mitigated impacts on renter households due to
renovation or redevelopment, and strengthened
protections for tenants

The City’s Residential Tenant
Displacement Policy (2021)
supports the OCP by requiring
enhanced notice and financial
assistance for renters displaced due
to redevelopment.

33

Page 56




Pathway 2 of the City’s Community
Wellbeing Strategy (2024) further
supports this objective.

reduced energy use and greenhouse gas emissions from
existing and future rental housing stock, while considering
impacts on tenants and affordability

Objectives 1.2.2,1.2.3,and 4.1.1
support existing and future housing
stock to be more energy-efficient,
produce zero-waste, and reduce
GHG emissions.

The City’s Climate & Environment
Strategy (2024) further supports
these objectives by providing a
strategic framework to advance
resilience and sustainability across
housing typologies.

Policy 4.2.8

Section

Policy

Supplementary Information

Prepare a

nd implement housing strategies or action plans that:

a)

encourage the supply of new rental housing and mitigate
or limit the loss of existing rental housing stock

Please see the City of North
Vancouver’s Housing Action Plan
(2016), Housing Needs Report
(2021), Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024), and Density Bonus
and Community Benefits Policy
(2018).

Pathway 2 of the City’s Community
Wellbeing Strategy (2024) supports
developing inclusionary policies,
regulations, and incentives to
increase the supply of non-market
housing in the City.

Strategy 7 of the City’s Housing
Action Plan (2016) focuses on
sustaining and enhancing non-
market housing through support for
non-profit societies in preserving
existing stock and pursuing
regeneration opportunities as they
arise.

The City’s Density Bonus and
Community Benefits Policy (2018)
protects existing purpose-built
rental housing and, when rental
sites are rezoned, limits the future
use to rental housing.

b)

encourage tenant protections and assistance for renter
households impacted by renovation or redevelopment of
existing purpose-built rental housing

Please see the City of North
Vancouver’s Housing Action Plan
(2016), Housing Needs Report
(2021), Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024), and Pathway 2 of

34

Page 57




the Community Wellbeing Strategy
(2024).

The City’s Community Wellbeing
Strategy (2024) supports renters
through Pathway 2 — Tactic 2.21,
by using the City’s Tenant
Displacement Policy and other
regulatory tools.

The City’s Residential Tenant
Displacement Policy (2021)
protects tenants who are displaced
as a result of redevelopment of
rental accomodations with
enhanced notice and assistance
beyond that required under the
Residential Tenancy Act (RTA).
Under the Inclusionary Housing
Policy (2025), eligible tenants
displaced by redevelopment are
given first priority for 10%
Inclusionary Housing Rental units in
the new building.

c) cooperate with and facilitate the activities of Metro
Vancouver Housing under Action 4.2.2

Please see the City of North
Vancouver’s Housing Action Plan
(2016), Housing Needs Report
(2021), and Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024).

The City’s Housing Action Plan
(2016) emphasizes cross-sector
partnerships to advance housing
initiatives in Strategy 6, including to
collaborate with organizations
including Metro Vancouver to
support the development of diverse
housing types and tenures.

Strategy 4.3 Meet the housing needs of lower income households and populations
experiencing or at risk of homelessness

Policy 4.3.7

Section | Policy

Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

a) indicate how they will collaborate with the Federal
Government, the Province, and other partners, to assist in
increasing the supply of permanent, affordable, and
supportive housing units

Objective 1.5.8 refers to the
collaboration with senior levels of
government to produce new
supportive housing units.

The City is advancing nine housing
initiatives, funded by the Federal
Housing Accelerator Fund (HAF), to

35

Page 58




increase the supply of and improve
the quality, diversity, and
affordability of housing.

The City is coordinating with non-
profit organizations and senior
levels of government to lead capital
projects on City-owned land that
focus on expanding rental housing
and community-based services
through a not-for-profit model

b)

identify policies and actions to partner with other levels
of government and non-profit organizations in order to
create pathways out of homelessness and contribute to
meeting the housing and support needs of populations

experiencing or at risk of homelessness

Objective 1.5.7 supports the
provision of various housing
options along the housing
spectrum, including shelters, safe
houses, transitional housing, and
supportive housing.

Objective 3.1.6 refers to the
collaboration with community
partners to provide support and
assistance for people in need,
including transitioning out from
homelessness.

Pathways 2 and 6 of the City’s
Community Wellbeing Strategy
(2024) further support these
objectives.

Policy 4.3.8

Section

Policy

Supplementary Information

Prepare a

nd implement housing strategies or action plans that

a)

identify opportunities to participate in programs with
other levels of government to secure additional housing
units to meet the housing needs of lower

income households

Please see the City of North
Vancouver’s Housing Action Plan
(2016), Housing Needs Report
(2021), Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024), and Pathway 2 of
the Community Wellbeing Strategy
(2024).

Pathway 2 of the City’s Community
Wellbeing Strategy (2024) includes
Tactic 2.11 to leverage senior
government funding and programs
for non-market housing and
capitalize on partnership
opportunities.

b)

identify strategies to increase community acceptance and
communicate the benefits of affordable and supportive
housing development

Please see the City of North
Vancouver’s Housing Action Plan
(2016), Housing Needs Report
(2021), Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024), and Pathway 2 of

36

Page 59




the Community Wellbeing Strategy
(2024).

Pathway 2 of the City’s Community
Wellbeing Strategy (2024) includes
the following relevant tactics:

Tactic 2.6 to reduce the stigma
associated with being unhoused by
increasing awareness of the root
causes, including the individual,
economic, and societal factors.

Tactic 2.26 to increase public access
to the City’s housing data, policies,
and information.

Tactic 5.5 to work with partners to
de-stigmatize and raise awareness
in the community about poverty,
share information on available
services and resources, and to
motivate the community to take
action.

are aligned with or integrate plans to address Please see the City of North
homelessness, and identify strategies to reduce the total Vancouver’s Housing Action Plan
number of households that are in core housing need and (2016), Housing Needs Report
populations experiencing or at risk of homelessness (2021), Interim Housing Needs
Report (2024), Pathway 2 of the
Community Wellbeing Strategy
(2024), and North Shore Poverty
Reduction Strategy (2023).

The City’s Community Wellbeing
Strategy (2024) includes the
following relevant pathways and
tactics to address Homelessness
and reduce poverty:

Pathway 2 includes several tactics
to support individuals and families
experiencing, or at risk of,
homelessness.

Tactic 6.10 under Pathway 6
focuses on strategic advocacy and
financial support with senior levels
of government to secure funding
and partnership opportunities that
address the needs of those at risk
of, or experiencing, homelessness.
Pathway 5 employs multiple tactics
to build a people-centered local

37

Page 60




economy and foster collaboration
to break the cycle of poverty.

In 2023, the City endorsed the
North Shore Poverty Reduction
Strategy, a collaborative, cross-
government initiative to reduce
poverty through coordinated
actions across the region.

Metro 2050 Goal 5: Support Sustainable Transportation Choices

Describe how the OCP and other supporting plans and policies contribute to this Goal:

The City of North Vancouver encourages sustainable mobility choices, as reflected in the Official Community Plan
(OCP). In collaboration with partners such as TransLink and other municipalities, the City is committed to
maintaining, enhancing, and expanding its transportation network to meet the objectives outlined in the OCP and
the Mobility Strategy. Chapters 1 and 2 of the OCP aim to support sustainable modes of transportation—such as
walking, cycling, micro-mobility, electric vehicles, car-sharing, and transit—optimize routes for all travel modes,
and ensure accessibility for people of all backgrounds. Additional plans and policies that support the OCP include
the Mobility Strategy (2022), Curb Access and Parking Plan (2025), Community Wellbeing Strategy (2024),
Climate & Environment Strategy (2024), Economic Development Strategy (2023), Safe Mobility Strategy (2020),
North Shore Area Transit Plan (2012), Electric Vehicle Strategy (2018), Walk CNV Pedestrian Plan Framework
(2017), and Bicycle Master Plan (2012).

Strategy 5.1 Coordinate land use and transportation to encourage transit, multiple-
occupancy vehicles, cycling and walking

Section | Policy Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

a) identify land use and transportation policies and actions to Objectives 2.1.1,2.1.2,2.1.4 -
encourage a greater share of trips made by transit, shared 2.1.9,2.2.1,2.2.2,and 2.2.4 -
mobility options, cycling, walking, and rolling 2.2.7 support, encourage, and

strive to improve sustainable
transportation methods in the
City.

< Action 8A of the City’s Mobility

e Strategy (2022) further supports

; these objectives.

> | b) support the development and implementation of Objective 2.1.8 and 7.2.10 refer

é transportation demand management strategies, such as: to the collaboration between the

8 parking pricing and supply measures, transit priority City and transportation partners
measures, end-of-trip facilities for active transportation and | to implement transportation
micro-mobility, and shared mobility services demand strategies that

simultaneously encourage active
transportation and support local
businesses with parking.

Actions 4B, 4E, 6A, and 8B of the
City’s Mobility Strategy (2022),
and the City’s Curb Access and
Parking Plan (2025) further
support these objectives.

38

Page 61




c)

manage and enhance municipal infrastructure
in support of transit, multiple-occupancy vehicles, cycling,
walking, and rolling

Objectives 1.1.2,1.4.5,2.1.1,
2.1.4,2.1.6,2.3.1-2.3.3,2.3.5,
and 2.3.9 refer to the
management of sustainable
transportation infrastructure,
including their development,
maintenance, improvement, and
provision.

Strategies 1, 2, 5, 6, and 7 of the
City’s Mobility Strategy (2022)
further support these objectives.

d)

support the transition to zero-emission vehicles

Objectives 2.2.2 and 2.3.8
support the transition to zero-
emission vehicles.

Actions 3Bii and 3Biii of the City’s
Mobility Strategy (2022) further
support these objectives.

support implementation of the Regional
Greenway Network and Major Bikeway Network, as
identified in Map 10

Objective 5.1.3 refers to
connecting the City’s
trail/greenway network beyond
municipal boundaries.

Action 11Diii of the City’s
Mobility Strategy (2022)
provides additional support to
this objective.

The City continues to work
closely with TransLink and Metro
Vancouver on the
implementation of the Major
Bikeway Network and Regional
Greenway Network

f)

support implementation of local active transportation and
micro-mobility facilities that provide direct, comfortable, all
ages and abilities connections to the Regional Greenway
Network, Major Bikeway Network, transit services, and
everyday destinations

Objectives 2.1.1, 2.1.2, and 2.2.2
support investment in active
transportation facilities to
encourage people of all ages and
abilities to pursue active
transportation methods.

Actions 1Bi, 1Diii, 1Div, and 1E of
the City’s Mobility Strategy
(2022) provide additional support
to these objectives.

Strategy 5.2 Coordinate land use and transportation to support the safe and efficient
movement of vehicles for passengers, goods, and services

Polic

Section

Policy

Applicable OCP Policies

Adopt Regional Context Statements that:

39

Page 62




a)

identify routes on a map for the safe and efficient
movement of goods and service vehicles to, from, and
within Urban Centres; Frequent Transit Development Areas;
Major Transit Growth Corridors; Industrial, Employment,
and Agricultural lands; ports; airports; and international
border crossings

See the OCP Schedule E Regional
Context Statement Map.

b) identify land use and related policies and actions that Objective 2.1.10 and 2.3.10 refer
support the optimization and safety of goods movement via | to the collaboration with other
roads, highways, railways, aviation, short sea shipping, and municipalities and levels of
active transportation government to optimize the

efficiency and safety of trade
routes.

Strategy 9 of the City’s Mobility
Strategy (2022) provides
additional support to these
objectives.

c) support the development of local and regional Objectives 2.1.6, 2.1.10, 2.2.5,
transportation system management strategies, 2.3.10, and 7.2.6 refer to the
such as the provision of information to operators of goods collaboration with other
and service vehicles for efficient travel decisions, municipalities to implement
management of traffic flow using transit priority measures, transportation system
coordinated traffic signalization, and lane management management strategies to

improve overall traffic network
efficiency.

Strategy 10 of the City’s Mobility
Strategy (2022) provides
additional support to these
objectives.

d) identify policies and actions that support the Objective 7.2.6 supports the
protection of rail rights-of-way, truck routes, and access City’s existing rail network and its
points to navigable waterways in order to reserve the role in delivering goods and
potential for goods movement services to the port.

Strategy 9 of the City’s Mobility
Strategy (2022) provides
additional support to this
objective.

e) identify policies and actions to mitigate public Objectives 2.3.3, 2.3.4, and
exposure to unhealthy levels of noise, vibration, and air 4.2.14 relate to mitigating the
pollution associated with the Major Road Network, Major noise and air pollution impacts of
Transit Network, railways, truck routes, and Federal / development and infrastructure.
Provincial Highways

Action 7D of the City’s Mobility
Strategy (2022) provides
additional support to these
objectives.

f) identify policies and actions that anticipate the land and Objective 2.1.10, 2.3.8, 2.3.10,

infrastructure requirements for goods movement and
drayage, such as truck parking, zero-emission vehicle
charging infrastructure, and e-commerce distribution

and 7.2.6 relate to the
optimization of the City’s
transportation system and

40

Page 63




centres, and mitigate any negative impacts of these uses on
neighbourhoods

options to improve goods
movement and reduce
environmental impacts.

Strategy 9 and 10 of the City’s
Mobility Strategy (2022) provide
additional support to these
objectives.

41

Page 64




Metro 2050 Implementation

Metro 2050 includes some policies that can be used if the Member Jurisdiction includes language
permitting them, either below or in statements elsewhere in the RCS.

Policy 6.2.7

Policy

Member Jurisdiction
Response

A Member Jurisdiction may include language in its Regional Context
Statement that permits amendments to the municipality’s Official
Community Plan to adjust the boundaries of regional land use
designations within the Urban Containment Boundary, as follows:

a) the Member Jurisdiction may re-designate land from one regional
land use designation to another regional land use designation, only if
the aggregate area of all proximate sites so re-designated does not
exceed one (1) hectare;

b) notwithstanding section 6.2.7 (a), for sites that are greater than one
(1) hectare and less than three (3) hectares in area, the Member
Jurisdiction may redesignate land:

e from Industrial to General Urban regional land use designation, if
the site is contiguous with an Industrial site and the developable
portion of the site will be predominantly within 150 metres of an
existing or approved rail rapid transit station; or

e from Industrial to Employment regional land use designation if the
developable portion of the site will be predominantly within 250
metres of an existing or approved rail rapid transit station,

provided that:
e the re-designation does not impede rail, waterway, road, or
highway access for industrial uses; and
e the aggregate area of all proximate sites so re-designated
does not exceed three (3) hectares;

c) the aggregate area of land affected by all re-designations under
section 6.2.7 (a) and (b) together cannot exceed two (2) percent of the
Member Jurisdiction’s total lands within each applicable regional land
use designation as of July 29, 2011.

The City of North Vancouver’s
Regional Context Statement
hereby permits this.

Policy 6.2.8

A Member Jurisdiction may include language in its Regional Context
Statement that permits amendments to its Official Community Plan to
adjust the boundaries of Urban Centres and Frequent Transit
Development Areas, provided such boundary adjustments meet the

guidelines set out in Table 3 (Guidelines for Urban Centres and Frequent

Transit Development Areas) of the Regional Growth Strategy.

The City of North Vancouver’s
Regional Context Statement
hereby permits this.

42

Page 65




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 66



Silver Harbour
Seniors’ Activity Centre

Presentation to City of North Vancouver Council
March 2, 2026

SILVER
HARBOUR -
CENTRE

PPPPPP



PROGRAMMING AND IMPACT

79 Programs and
Services Offered

W&

More than 250

Over 3000 seniors served

Nearly 1000 Members
volunteers
$17,910 in free groceries Over 2,000 informational
distributed pamphlets distributed

Page 68

Over 12,000
subsidized meals served

Over 25,000 volunteer
hours contributed

30+ community
partners

ILVER

HARBOUR -



PROGRAMMING AND IMPACT

social connectedness

sense of purpose
self-confidence/self-esteem
resilience

creative expression
mental/emotional wellness
physical health

capacity to plan/
make informed choices

ILVER

HARBOUR -
ENTRE

Page 69



50 AMAZING LIVES

Stories From Silver Harbour’s Senior Community

Meet Ming

“The sense of fulfillment
and purpose | experience
while contributing to Silver
Harbour is immeasurable.
This centre has become
more than just a place to
give my time; it'sa
community where I've
found a unique sense

of belonging.”

Meet Vic

“The centre helps
keep me connected
and pushes me to
maintain a good
level of socialization.
It's made a big
difference in my

mental health.”

Page 70

Meet Mehrun

“Through Silver Harbour
| have found a social
network. It feels great to
be a part of the North
Vancouver community,
particularly the Silver
Harbour community.”

Meet Roberta

“It may sound trivial but
when you lock at it as a
whole you see how
transformative a place
like this is. It gives seniors
somewhere to come to,
to get up in the morning

and get out of the house,

to meet people, to have
a social life.”

ILVER

HARBOUR -



CURRENT OPERATIONS

Revenues Expenses

6 %
32%

38 %
32%
| 50 %

30 % ek

m Earned Income ® Municipal Grants Other Grants/Donations Staffing ®= Building = Programs m Admin

ILVER

HARBOUR -
ENTRE

Page 71



NEW BUILDING

New facility specs
Accessible and sustainable design

- .. b
[ 1%

I’t"' q'
-_k - ; . A '. h&_‘\
Pt it 1 '* Y .
Y R =

= il o =
- - - e '-.-'.i't'._ 3

T,
ILVER

HARBOUR -

Page 72



EQUIPPING AND MOVING

Working with Make Projects
on FF&E/move readiness
Change Management project with SFU
Move approach:
tapering = brief closure = phased restart

Page 73



NEW BUILDING = NEW OPPORTUNITIES

demographic changes

increased visibility/expanded outreach
expanded operating hours

managing parking

collaborating with Harry Jerome
building operating costs

fundraising campaign

Page 74



Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre
144 East 22™ Street

HARBOUR" North Vancouver, BC, V7L 4L5

Tel 604-980-2474

CENTRE www.silverharbourcentre.com

Richard Gauntlett Annwen Loverin
President Executive Director

January 5, 2026

Amelia Cifarelli, Corporate Officer
City of North Vancouver

141 West 14th Street

North Vancouver, BC V7M 1H9

Reviewed by CAO LI

Re: Requesting that Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre
Appear as a Delegation to Council

Dear Ms. Cifarelli,

With this letter, we are requesting that Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre appear as a delegation
to the City of North Vancouver Council. The presentation will be made by Annwen Loverin, Executive
Director, and Richard Gauntlett, President of the Board of Directors.

The purpose of our presentation is to provide City Council with an update on:

Our programs and services and their beneficial impacts for seniors in North Vancouver
Our current operations

Our plans for equipping and operating our new building, currently under construction
The potential challenges and new opportunities our new building will bring

We hope to be scheduled for a delegation to Council on Monday March 2, 2026. This date will
align well with an anticipated City staff presentation on the new Harry Jerome Community
Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Centre on that same evening.

Thank you for considering our request,

Annwen Loverin
Executive Director
Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre

Our Vision: A Diverse Community that Celebrates Aging
Our Mission: To help seniors thrive by offering a wide range of programs, services, and connections.

Page 75



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 76



Harry Jerome Community Recreation
Centre & Silver Harbour Seniors’

I| s I £ | ! - : -
m o= 1 L ) PEERTTRN D
s e e Al
il 31| 1Ny

-
i| g I m
— - ]
5 E]
AR N e i e — -
rp -
E
j
i [
i

Presented March 2, 2026
Office of the Deputy Chief Administrative Officer

ity
ofnorth

vancouver

Page 77



This Is the Year!

Today

Project Schedule
Project Financials
Communications Plan
Operational Readiness
The Transition Plan
Construction Update
What you’ll see in 2026



A Lot to Celebrate

Enhanced Amenities
« Significantly larger aquatics
 NHL sized ice arena
« Community kitchen

Accessibility
» Targeting Gold Rick Hansen Accessibility Certification

Sustainability
« Advanced energy performance (LEC, InBlue and CO2 chiller)

Mental and Social Health

« Designed as social hub with informal gathering spaces, café & large
atrium



A Lot to Celebrate

Dedicated Wellness Spaces
« Holistic integration of sports culture, education and community spaces

« Leisure pool, hot tubs, steam/sauna, large fithess centre and
multipurpose rooms

Multigenerational Integration
* Youth, seniors, preschool, fitness, arena & aquatics in one complex

Community Gathering & Cultural Events
« Large community social spaces
 Integration of Building with large public plaza
« Large Public Atrium (community living room)




Project Schedule

Comparison of Change in Schedule

Milestone____| Previous Current

Substantial Completion  February 2026 June 2026
NVRC Mobilization March 2026 May 2026
Opening June 2026 July 2026
Total Completion July 2026 August 2026



Project Schedule

Now to June:

« Exterior site work to be
completed

* Final road paving
* Building commissioning
« Construction complete

« Café tenant
Improvements

 NVRC Mobilization
« July 2026: Facility opens
to public




Project Financial Update

« Forecasted to be on budget ($230M)

« Changes or additions to project scope
will affect schedule and place the project
over budget




Communications

« Shift from construction updates
to promotion of opening

e March to June — Storytelling,
visible promotions including bus
shelters and digital advertising

* June to July - push to opening
day (giveaways and sneak
peaks)

* August to September - telling the
story of what was achieved

HARRY JEROME

.m COMMUNITY

» RECREATION
CENTRE




Communications

Cl

of north
vancouver

HARRY JEROME
COMMUNITY
RECREATION
CENTRE

hjcrc.ca




Operational Readiness

A joint operational readiness team made up of
NVRC, CNV and MAKE Projects in place to ensure
NVRC is ready to commence day-to-day operations
& full building activation in new HICRC

Main Areas of focus
* Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment
 Move Management

Training & Orientations

Change Management

Tactical & Integration Planning




The Transition Plan to New HJCRC
From June 28 thru July:

 NVRC move into new centre & set up of rooms
with furniture & programming items

* On-site training of existing & new staff

Month of August:
« "Try-it” activations & programs
September & beyond:

 Building fully activated & all programs running
out of the new centre



The Transition Plan — Existing HICRC

June 30
 Last day of formal recreation programming
« All HICRC tenants to vacate existing centre
 Staff transition to new centre

July & August

« Summer camps to run out of Memorial
Gymnasium

« Ongoing access to existing HICRC dry arena
for lacrosse

« Extra swimming lane at Pinnacle (Shipyards)




Construction Update

Envelope Work - Fitness




Construction Update

Envelope Work - Aguatics




Construction Update

.. ™
Hidiiny \‘““\‘\!

W Tnu"ﬁﬁ'ﬁ!mnwﬁnw 4\ i

l

Mass Timber




Construction Update

A n:“




Construction Update




|l_ -
..g;% DRW += . l

Mechanical systems complete

Update

1on

Construct




Interiors




Interiors

Fllll\ll!‘l

| ?.Q . ~ by ! :
-\ ) APl [N
| ﬁl’ id 'llllllln\“lll S A
' H v i : i x ¢ "1 ‘*‘: ' ~ | | j
I ’! i segl ﬁ"'/.r : N Rkl A
J"fr e g b g gl . ; ™ ; q-j-‘

i ké’




Interiors

Upper Level




Interior/Exterior

Upper Level (Fitness)




10I'S

Inter

Lower Level




Interiors

l’“

.

i

uii

|!
'

il L

Aquatics

|
|

|
|

T | =
I | 1 L o

___—1_ i L:_ | it e 7

e s . r“ﬁﬁﬁ ﬁ




Aquatics

Interiors




Construction Update




Construction Update

Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre Interiors



Construction Update

Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre Interiors




What You’ll See in 2026

Construction

« Landscaping
installation

* Final paving and site
furnishings

------

Opening

« Opening celebration
In late July




FdU € Yle



LORTH
D"\\‘ e 0, CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
OFFICE OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

INFORMATION REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council
From: Barbara Pearce, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer

Subject: NEW HARRY JEROME COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTRE AND
SILVER HARBOUR SENIORS’ ACTIVITY CENTRE — PROJECT UPDATE

Date: February 11, 2026 File No: 02-0800-30-0028/1

SUMMARY

Construction of the new Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre (HJCRC) and
Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre (SH) is nearing completion, with building
occupancy anticipated by the end of the second quarter of 2026. The overall project
budget remains at $230 million, with 99.3% of the work tendered and pricing secured.
As the project enters its final phase, operational planning and commissioning activities
are well underway. The project remains on budget and is expected to fully expend the
approved capital allocation, with a public opening anticipated in late July 2026.

BACKGROUND

The HICRC/SH project represents the most significant capital revitalization initiative
undertaken by the City of North Vancouver. Following several years of planning, design
development, consultation, and community engagement, construction is nearing
completion on what will be a modern, inclusive, and fully accessible community
recreation hub. The new Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre and Silver
Harbour Seniors Activity Centre are intended to support the physical, mental, and social
well-being of residents and aligns with the City’s vision of being the Healthiest Small
City in the World.

DISCUSSION
Project Schedule Update

Council authorized the commencement of construction for the HJCRC/SH project on
March 7, 2022. The project is being delivered using a phased construction approach,
allowing work to proceed in alignment with available funding and minimizing overall

Document Number: 2768583

Page 107



INFORMATION REPORT: New Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Seniors’
Activity Centre — Project Update
Date: February 11, 2026

borrowing requirements. Key construction milestones achieved or nearing completion
include:

« Utility Upgrades: Replacement of water, sanitary, and storm utilities on East
23" Street

« Site Preparation: Bulk excavation, soil remediation, and removal of oversized
boulders

e Concrete Works: Foundations, slabs, suspended slabs, and above-grade
columns

o Structural Work: Steel and wood framing, including metal decking

e Mechanical and Electrical Systems: Mechanical systems 86% complete;
electrical systems 90% complete

o Off-site Utilities: Completion of BC Hydro, Telus, Rogers/Shaw, and Lonsdale
Energy Corporation underground services

o Public Realm Works: Public sidewalks, curbs, Green Necklace, and multi-use
pathway approximately 80% complete

o Landscaping: Soft and hard landscaping approximately 40% complete

The phased delivery strategy approved by Council has allowed the project to proceed
steadily while responding to evolving market and site conditions. At the time of the initial
construction award, substantial completion was anticipated by September 30, 2025,
with operational opening in early 2026. Subsequent updates forecasted occupancy in
January 2026, with the last Council update indicating a Spring 2026 opening.

Due to unavoidable circumstances encountered through the course of construction
including existing site conditions, weather delays, and due to the sheer complexity of
building systems and their interconnections, minor schedule extensions have been
made. Collectively, these schedule adjustments have resulted in a revised construction
completion / occupancy date of June 30, 2026, with a public opening scheduled for July
2026.

In the first year of construction, the requirement to remove contaminated soils and
oversized boulders from the site resulted in a three-month delay. While schedule
mitigation was initially expected through the overall construction period, weather-related
constraints prevented a full schedule recovery. Additional schedule impacts later in the
project were primarily attributable to the architectural and technical complexity of the
building which required a high level of coordination of advanced mechanical and
electrical systems. Such impacts are typical of large, highly technical public facilities.
Overall, the project has experienced fewer schedule disruptions than comparable
projects of similar scale and complexity, largely due to the strict quality control
measures placed on the project team and subsequent performance of the Prime
Consultant team, the General Contractor, and major trades.

To support North Vancouver Recreation & Culture (NVRC) with operational readiness,
the project team has identified opportunities for staff to begin phased operational set-up
in select areas prior to formal occupancy. These operational and training activities will
occur concurrently with final construction through May and June 2026, enabling a late
July public opening.

Page 2 of 6

Page 108



INFORMATION REPORT: New Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Seniors’
Activity Centre — Project Update
Date: February 11, 2026

Upcoming Construction Activities

Q1 2026

Complete drywall, painting, and flooring

Install wayfinding

Aquatic area tiling, ceiling panels, and lighting
Complete final mechanical and electrical works
Complete hard landscaping

Install millwork and interior finishes

Install commercial kitchen equipment at Silver Harbour

Q2 2026

e Aquatic pool tank tiling
Final flooring and commissioning of Silver Harbour kitchen
Commissioning of building systems by area
Room-by-room design compliance reviews
Pool commissioning and staff training
Completion of skate park
Completion of soft landscaping
Final paving on St. Georges Avenue and East 23rd Street
Installation of fitness equipment, furniture, and IT systems
Integrated systems testing
June 30, 2026: Substantial Completion of Construction

Occupancy and Regulatory Approvals

The facility will initially be issued an Interim Occupancy Permit, enabling controlled
access to areas deemed safe for staff orientation, operational set-up, and phased public
use. Final Occupancy will be granted following completion of all required inspections
and approvals from relevant regulatory authorities, including Vancouver Coastal Health,
related to aquatics, preschool, commercial kitchen operations, and café services. The
project team is actively coordinating with all regulatory agencies to ensure inspections,
compliance verification, and approvals proceed in a timely and efficient manner,
supporting the targeted operational transition schedule.

A public opening celebration is currently planned for late July 2026, subject to final
regulatory approvals.

Addressing Deficiencies

Quality control and assurance processes will remain in place until one year following
Substantial Performance. Most deficiencies are expected to be identified in May and
June 2026 and remediated by mid-September. Warranty coverage will extend through
June 2027.

Page 3 of 6

Page 109



INFORMATION REPORT: New Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Seniors’
Activity Centre — Project Update
Date: February 11, 2026

Risk Management

A comprehensive risk register is actively monitored, tracking risks across ten categories
including scope, funding, schedule, safety, and quality. Key risks and mitigation
measures include:

Program scope finalized and tendering completed

Geotechnical risks closed

Contaminated soil remediation completed

Oversized boulder removal completed

Long-lead procurement completed

Weather and constructability risks substantially mitigated

Strong site safety performance, significantly below industry lost-time standards
High quality workmanship across major trades

Proactive systems modeling and coordination reducing rework and claims

Operational Readiness

NVRC will commence phased operational set-up activities in advance of formal
occupancy while concurrently managing the transition and closure of the existing
HJCRC facility. Regular programming at the current centre will conclude on June 28,
2026, with limited seasonal activities continuing to ensure service continuity where
feasible. This transition period is required to support equipment installation, systems
commissioning, staff training, and operational preparation necessary for the opening of
the new facility.

During the transition period, NVRC will adjust service delivery across its network to
maintain recreational access for the community. Aquatic programming and rental
capacity will be expanded at Ron Andrews, Karen Magnussen, Delbrook Community
Recreation Centres, and Pinnacle Pool. Fitness services will continue to be available
through John Braithwaite Community Centre and other NVRC locations, supplemented
by enhanced outdoor fithess programming. Historically, summer represents a lower
utilization period for indoor recreation services, helping to minimize community
disruption.

From May through July 2026, operational readiness efforts will focus on coordinated
commissioning and activation activities, including:

e Furniture, fixtures, and equipment: Procurement coordination and installation

« Change management: organizational transition planning and program/service
finalization

« Training and orientation: Finalization of operating procedures and staff
onboarding

« Move management: Sequenced relocation planning and execution

« Tactical integration planning: Operational testing, dry runs, and go-live readiness

Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre is progressing in parallel with its own operational
readiness planning to support coordinated opening.

Page 4 of 6

Page 110



INFORMATION REPORT: New Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Seniors’
Activity Centre — Project Update
Date: February 11, 2026

Communications

A phased Communications and Promotions Plan is in place to support the successful
opening of the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre in July 2026. The plan is
designed to inform residents, build awareness, and celebrate this major civic amenity.

Communications has been providing regular and ongoing storytelling highlighting the
progress on construction and the people and innovations behind the build including
videos, updated web content and social media outreach. Ongoing communications
outreach will continue to reinforce the City’s vision of A Healthy City for all with HICRC
positioned as the social heart of the community. The forthcoming content will highlight
the delivery of this one in a generation facility’s inclusivity, accessibility, modern
amenities, and unite the community and city leaders in a celebration. Promotions will
include celebrating the delivery of the new Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre.

The program will roll-out with the following timelines:

e Construction Completion (Jan- March 2026) to include additional videos,
social media and an updated web presence.

e Pre-Opening Awareness (March - June 2026) to include outreach like bus
shelters, social media outreach, and banners.

e Opening & Community Celebration (planned for late July 2026) to include
onsite activations, tours, and opening ceremony.

e Post-Opening Engagement (August — October, 2026) to include videos of key
figures in the project, project mini-documentary, photos of the new spaces
and transition to programming

Key channels will include the City and NVRC websites, social media, digital newsletters,
on-site signage, community partners, and local media. Internal communications and
staff briefings will ensure consistent messaging and strong customer support during the
transition. This coordinated approach will support a smooth opening, strong public
engagement, and sustained use of the new facility.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The HICRC/SH project remains within the approved $230 million capital budget.
Through phased procurement, early tendering, and disciplined scope and contingency
management, the project team has successfully managed inflation, supply-chain
disruption, and construction cost escalation.

The project is being delivered during an exceptionally volatile construction period
characterized by inflation, supply chain disruption, labour cost escalation, tariff risks,
and commodity price fluctuations. To mitigate these pressures, the project team
implemented the following strategies:

« Phased Tendering: Procurement aligned with critical path scheduling to reduce
inflation exposure.

Page 5 of 6

Page 111



INFORMATION REPORT: New Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Seniors’
Activity Centre — Project Update
Date: February 11, 2026

o Clash Detection: Use of 3D modeling to resolve design conflicts prior to
construction.

As of January 2026, 99.3% of the project has been tendered and awarded, with only
furniture remaining to be procured. The project remains within the approved $230
million budget, with contingency expected to be fully utilized upon completion.

At this point in time, no additional borrowing or budget increases are anticipated as the
project transitions to occupancy and operations.

As of January 31, 2026, the City has drawn $49.8 million of its $109 million Municipal
Finance Authority (MFA) construction loan. The City’s 2026-2030 Financial Plan
assumes that the MFA loan will be repaid from the sale of the Harry Jerome
Neighborhood Lands in 2027. Under the MFA program, the City has until March 24,
2030 (five years from the first draw on March 24, 2025) to either repay or convert the
loan to long-term fixed-rate financing.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

The project has benefited from strong collaboration across all City departments, North
Vancouver Recreation & Culture, and Lonsdale Energy Corporation, contributing to
effective coordination and successful delivery.

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP, AND POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The HICRC/SH project aligns with the City’s long-term strategic vision of A Healthy City
for All. The new facility represents a major investment in public infrastructure and will
serve as a cornerstone for community health, recreation, and social connection for
generations to come.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: T XC
Barbara Pearce
Deputy Chief Administrative Officer

o

Page 6 of 6

Page 112



	1 Agenda
	2 Minutes�
	*3 Bylaw 9152
	4 Bylaw 9141�
	5 Silver Harbour Seniors' Activity Centre
	5 Delegation�
	5 Correspondence�

	Presentation - HJCRC & SH
	IR Feb 11 2026




